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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEZERAF

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

For and on behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

RESULT ANALYSIS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

2016 witnessed the co-existence of opportunities and
difficulties in the Group’s operation. Despite the slow down
of China’s economy and intense competition in the consumer
electronics industry, the flexible printed circuits (“FPC")
industry in China and in the worldwide continued to grow.
There were frequent capital injection, production expansion,
merger and reorganization in the FPC industry in China.
The market competition became more intense and technical
difficulties in products continued to increase. In addition, more
new application fields of FPC arose, such as the adoption of
FPC designs in new fields including new energy vehicles and
wireless charging.

The Group recorded sales turnover of approximately
HK$821,662,000 in the financial year of 2016, representing an
increase of approximately 30.29% as compared to that of last
year (2015: approximately HK$630,631,000). Profit attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$27,944,000,
representing an increase of approximately 15,004.86%
as compared to that of last year (2015: approximately
HK$185,000). In addition, as at 31 December 2016, basic
earnings per share was approximately HK2.72 cents, 136 times
increase as compared to that of last year (2015: approximately
HKO0.02 cents).

During the year under review, the Group recorded a significant
increase in the turnover of its FPC business due to staggering
growth in demand from domestic customers, and the gradual
achievement of economies of scale in FPC business. However,
as the development of flexible packaging substrates business
did not progress as expected, economies of scale was not
achieved and significant operation loss was still recorded for
the flexible packaging substrates business. The increase of the
overall results of the Group was hard-earned, which reflects
recognition of the market and customers in the core capacity of
the Group. The Group will bring better returns for the market

and customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

During the year under review, the Group continued to increase
investment in research and development. The research
and development expenses increased to approximately
HK$92,122,000, representing an increase of approximately
31.00% as compared to that of last year. Due to the
continuous increase of new application fields of FPC and
flexible packaging substrates and the continuous uplift
of requirements in product structure and complexity by
downstream customers, the Group continued to increase
investment in research and development to continuously
uplift technology standard and technical capability, to conduct
research and development in new materials, new products and
new production techniques and automation transformation
in equipment. During the year under review, the main
development task undertaken by the Group for the "02"
major project titled “"Development and Industrialization of
Tape High-Density and Ultra-Thin Flexible Packaging Substrates
Technology” under National Science and Technology Major
Project for year 2014 was completed and all technical indicators
had been achieved on schedule.

During the year under review, the Group enhanced its
cooperation with the substantial shareholder, GoerTek Inc.
("GoerTek").
FPC and flexible packaging substrates of approximately
HK$90,822,000 (2015: approximately HK$28,968,000) to
GoerTek, representing a year-on-year growth of approximately
213.53%.

During the year under review, the Group sold

In 2017, it is expected that the global share of China’s key
mobile phone manufacturers will be sustained and increased.
The Group is confident to maintain and increase supply to
major customers and is expected to benefit from the growth of
such customers. In addition, following the continuous increase
of new application fields for FPC and flexible packaging
substrates, the Group is expected to develop new customers,
increase sales scale and improve the situation of operation loss
which resulted from big investment and small output of the
flexible packaging substrates business. The management of
the Group will strive to seize the opportunities, overcome the
difficulties and continuously increase the operation results, so
as to present satisfactory results and provide favourable returns
for its shareholders.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEEERAF

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

APPRECIATION

Mr. Bi Keyun did not seek for renewal of his appointment as
an independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company due to his retirement upon expiration of his term
of office on 3 February 2016. On 3 May 2016, Mr. Cui Zheng
was appointed as a non-executive director, a member of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank Mr. Bi for his valuable contribution to the
Company and express our warm welcome to Mr. Cui for joining
our company.

In addition, for and on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to thank the management and all staff
members of the Group for their dedication and invaluable
contributions to the Group in the past year. | would also like
to thank our customers, suppliers, business partners and
shareholders for their continuous support to the Group. The
Group will do its best to achieve good results and secure ideal
returns for our shareholders.

AKM Industrial Company Limited
Xiong Zheng Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (BEIFI£)
of the Company and an executive Director. In July 1992,

aged 47, is the chairman

he graduated from the Department of Computer Science
of Nankai University (B K2 ) and obtained his bachelor
degree in science. He then obtained his master degree in
economics from Nankai University School of Economics (g
FARZE&TEERT) in July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined China North
Industries Corporation (FREldt 77 T A Al) in August 1995
and took up the post of deputy general manager of China
North Industries Xiamen Corporation (F Bt F TZEM A
A]) from October 1999 to November 2000. From April 2003
to January 2011, he was an alternate director of Raymond
Industrial Ltd, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, and is a non-executive director since
January 2011. In November 2000, Mr. Xiong joined Silver City
International (Holdings) Ltd. (SRERE (£E)EFR A A))
(“Silver City"”), a controlling shareholder of the Company, as
assistant General Manager and was promoted to the position
of Deputy General Manager of Silver City in March 2004. He
is also a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (% #| & %
BT, a controlling shareholder of the Company, since
March 2001. Mr. Xiong is also a director of the subsidiaries of
the Group, namely AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. and
AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited. Mr.
Xiong joined the Company in March 2001 and is responsible for
the Group's corporate policy formulation, business strategies
planning, business development and management of the
Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Xiong does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any other relationship with any directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (4¥7&3), aged 56, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.
In January 1982, he graduated from the Faculty of Laser
Technology (X B fiTE 2 ) of Changchun Institute of Optics
and Fine Mechanics (K& X 2R EFHEMZEFT) and obtained
his bachelor degree in engineering. He then obtained his
Certificate on continuing education (#5 %&£ ) from the Hong
Kong Sino-Australia Management College (& /& B E&E 12 &
BT ) in June 2001. From February 1982 to September 1992, Mr.
Chai was employed by the Shuguang Appliances Factory of
Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province (GLER & 15 N T EE YL 25 80)
as engineer and branch-factory manager. He then joined Alpha
Luck Electronic & Electric Appliance Industrial (Guangzhou)
Ltd. (SRA (BEM)EFEREEEBR 2 A])in October 1992
as project manager. In January 1994, Mr. Chai joined the
Company and is responsible for research and development
and overall management of the Group. Mr. Chai has over 24
years of experience in the flexible printed circuit production
industry. Mr. Chai is a director of the subsidiaries of the Group,
namely, AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd., AKM Electronic
Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited and New Career
Guangzhou Electronics Company Limited. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Chai does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any other
relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial

shareholders, or controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Ying Hong (Z=BAL) , aged 53, was appointed as an
executive Director on 10 June 2003 and was re-designated as
a non-executive Director since 5 September 2014. In July 1985,
Ms. Li obtained her bachelor degree in corporate finance and
accounting from Jiangxi College of Finance (L #88f 48 & p7) .
In May 2003, she obtained her master degree in international
management from Australia National University. During the
period from August 1985 to February 2003, she was employed
as, amongst other roles, deputy chief accountant, deputy
general manager and chief accountant of China Wanbao
Engineering Corporation (R Bl & E T A 7)) . From March
2001 to April 2003, she was a director for Norinco International
Cooperation Company Limited (1b75 EEE & ERRMDBR QA ,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China.
She is a non-executive director of Raymond Industrial Ltd. (a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong) since July 2008. In June 2003, Ms. Li joined Silver
City, a controlling shareholder of the Company, as a director,
deputy general manager and financial controller, and ceased to
be the financial controller of Silver City since January 2016. At
the same time, she joined the Company and is responsible for
the Group's corporate policy formulation, business strategies
planning, business development and management of the
Group. Ms. Li is a director of the subsidiaries of the Group,
namely, AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. and AKM
Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited. Save as
disclosed above, Ms. Li does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the past three years, and does not have
any other relationship with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang (S8} ), aged 41, is currently Deputy
General Manager of GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Gao graduated from
Shandong Institute of Technology (1L & T2 ZET) in July 1998
and obtained his master degree in business administration from
Southern Cross University in Australia in 2006. Mr. Gao joined
GoerTek in 2001. Mr. Gao was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 12 March 2015. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Gao does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Jia Junan (EE %), aged 46, is currently vice general
manager of and secretary to the board of directors of GoerTek.
He graduated from Shandong Institute of Finance and
Economics (LU EFBERL ) in July 1993 with a bachelor degree
in economics and obtained his master degree in economics
from Shandong University (LI K& ) in 2003. Mr. Jia obtained
a doctorate degree in economics in 2008 from Xiamen
University (JEPIK28) . He is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Jia obtained a
qualification certificate for secretary to board of directors (&
EEMELZREBE) issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in 2013. Mr. Jia was previously manager of tax department
of KPMG China, Tsingdao office, and he joined GoerTek in
2010. Mr. Jia was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 17 November 2015. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Jia does not hold any directorship in other listed companies
in the past three years, and does not have any relationship
with any other directors, senior management, substantial

shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew (& 3&) , aged 48, is currently
the director of Norton Rowland CPA Limited. He received his
professional training in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and had
worked for UBS Investment Bank as business unit controller for
seven years. Mr. Hung was awarded the degree of Bachelor of
Arts in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) and the degree
of Master of Applied Finance by the University of Western
Sydney. Mr. Hung is a practicing Certified Public Accountant,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Hung is also an
independent non-executive director of FDG Kinetic Limited
(formerly known as CIAM Group Limited) since 1 July 2008. Mr.
Hung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 17 October 2011. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung does
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Mr. Zhao Xiao (# ), aged 50, is currently the chief
economist of Cypress Leadership Institute ( & A48 & 1) #
7). He graduated from Shandong University (LI KZ) in
July 1989 with a bachelor degree in economics and obtained
a master degree in economics in July 1995 from Institute of
Economic Research of Nankai University (7 B K 2245 7% #F
ZEFT) . Mr. Zhao obtained a doctorate degree in economics
in 1999 from Guanghua School of Management of Beijing
University (JE R KEHEEFIR L) . Mr. Zhao is an expert
committee member of FEIEMEXHEEXEETIZHES
¥Z E% (transliteration “Committee of Industry and Market
Research of the China Real Estate Association”). He is also a
special research fellow of China Society of Economic Reform
(PR EBERBSINERTS
and doctoral supervisor of University of Science and Technology
Beijing (1t &L K &) . Further, he had previously worked
for the former State Economic and Trade Commission Research
Centre (BIR&EEZ A L) and was head of Department
of Macro Strategy, Research Centre of State-owned Assets

. He was previously a professor

Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council (BBl & Z WP O REEEEL) . Mr. Zhao is
also an independent director of Wanda Cinema Line Co.,
Ltd (BESTRARKRMHAERAF) (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 2739), since 30
November 2012. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 February 2015. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Zhao does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the past three years, and does not have any
relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the

Company.

HHEE KL RFS05% R ABTNEE NHEN
BRECEER - FR—NLA\NLFLAE2ERN L
BAE EgEEELEN YR —ANLAF
T ARERASZLERREMBERGCESELS
Lo BEER—NNANFRIEFAEXEETER
RERKCESELSM - BAEATBREHE
EGeEXEMBMEEXZETERER -
W APBREEEH NENESHRMES -
1% BRI AR K BHIE R B T A SR - it
S RERATEREEZWRAB LT RIET
BEEREEELR AP OEEEBEINR ML
FHE T —F+—A=Z+BENHEIEES
FhRERNDBRAR (—HARRINBLFZ SN
EHZ AR BERB2739) 2B EE L
ERZE-—AF A+ NAEZTABILIEL
TEF-REMBEEEIN BEERNBEA=FM
WEAEM EMAGSHEERESRAMA - kI
EEANTAMNES SREEE TERFNK
TR R A TR E AR -



Annual Report 2016 —Z—XE&#

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENRSREEE

Mr. Cui Zheng (#8F), aged 62, is currently the supervisor
of the academic committee of the Suzhou Institute of Nano-
Tech and Nano-Bionics, Chinese Academy of Science (1 B %}
BT gk M AR K AT B AR K (5 £ B ST A7) and the supervisor of
the Printable Electronics Research Center ( El R E ¥ E #f 3¢
#F) at the Suzhou Institute of Nano-Tech and Nano-Bionics.
Mr. Cui obtained his doctorate degree in engineering from
Southeast University (R FEIAE) in 1988. He is a fellow of
the Institution of Engineering and Technology (previously the
Institution of Electrical Engineers ) since 2004. He is also a State
Specially Recruited Expert under the “1000 Talent Plan” of the
Government of the People’s Republic of China since 2009.
He is also the vice secretary-general of National Innovation
Association of Printed Electronics Industrial Technology ( & [
ENRIE FEEFMABIF ), and vice president of Touch
Screen Advisor Committee of SEMI China (regional office of
Semiconductor Equipment and Materials International ) . Mr.
Cui was elected "Scientific Chinese” of Year 2010. Mr. Cui
was previously a visiting fellow at the Cavendish Laboratory of
the University of Cambridge. Further, he was also previously
Principal Scientist at the Central Microstructure Facility of
Rutherford Appleton Laboratory in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Cui was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 3 May 2016. Mr. Cui does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the past three years, and does not have
any relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Mr. Bi Keyun (2% &), aged 78, is a fellow of Chinese
Institute of Electronics (R B E F2 € ) and president of
Electronic Manufacturing & Packaging Technology Society of
the Chinese Institute of Electronics (B E F2& & F 4l
HEEFRFITHE) . He is also the vice president of China
Semiconductor Industry Association (FRE ¥ EEEITE RS ) .
Mr. Bi graduated from University of Science and Technology
of China (P EIRIZ 1T X2 ) in 1963 and obtained the
qualification of senior engineer (researcher level) from the
former Ministry of Electronic Industry (FR#E A R X FMEE F
T%#) . Mr. Bi has accumulated substantial experience in
the research and development of semiconductor technology
and has been chairman of the International Conference on
Electronic Packaging Technology & High Density Package
since 1994. Mr. Bi was an independent director of Ningbo
Kanggiang Electronics Co., Ltd. (Z)KEREFRHDBMRAF),
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, during the
period from October 2008 to December 2014. He was also an
independent director of Tianshui Huatian Technology Co., Ltd.
(FRKZEXBRERMBMRAF) (“Tianshui Huatian”), another
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, during the
period from 2003 to 2010, and was appointed as independent
director of Tianshui Huatian again since 29 May 2013. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Bi does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the past three years, and does not have
any relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Bi was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 4 February 2013 and his term of office
expired on 3 February 2016. Mr. Bi Keyun did not seek for
renewal of his appointment as an independent non-executive
Director due to his retirement upon expiration of his term of
office. (Relevant disclosure in relation to Mr. Bi's retirement
had been made in the announcement of the Company dated 3
February 2016).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen (& 3&), aged 37, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Hung graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 2001 and 2002
respectively. She obtained her Master of Laws degree from
University College London in 2003. Ms Hung is a solicitor
practicing in Hong Kong since 2006 and was appointed as the
company secretary on 13 June 2011.

., YA

ERA%E BF/8m ATEEFEgg L
khBAETFEgErRERHEFRTIGES
R-BENATHYSETERSIRER -2
EEA—NAZFEERTEREBRITAE
WHRAEAREMBREFIESINESART
RENER (HEER) - EEERFERER I
RERFTEORBEELR YE—NMNLEFEE
SETEFHERNESEEHEBRESEN
IR -BEABZTENFTAEZ—N0OF
TZ ABAEERNRINESFZ S LR
RAEETROHERAGNBIES - FHAR_F
E-FE_T-TFHPAEETRNRIESFRS
FT ETR Y ROKER B R AR A A ([RKE
XM BIEE YA -_E—=FRA -1+
HEBEEZHTARKERNBYES KL
MEEEN BEERBE=FHEUENEM
EARAAIEEEAEERA - RIEERD A
FRMES SREERE TERRIIERBRRE
EAMEMER - BEEE T —=F=-AN
HREEBEZERBUIIFNTES HEHERZ
T-—RNEZAZHE®R - BEERLKRNTH
EmETBBETARRZENERNTES (F
BELEEKRETBEER-_ZE—AFA=HZ
KRB AMHFARTE) -

RNEME

RBELZL BF3I75 BEARAIRAEIWE K
RITBREREERE IR_ZTET—FR=F
S_FoRELBELENRABHEERE -
BFER_EE=FEMIARNBER 2 EZBELTS
Lo RZTEZTTRNFRAEBTBNERM I
N_B——FXA+=AEZEAATIWE-




Annual Report 2016 —Z—XE&#

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover of the
Group was approximately HK$821,662,000,
an increase of approximately 30.29% as compared to the

representing

turnover of last year. The increase in turnover was mainly due
to the staggering growth in demand from the domestic mobile
phone customers, which resulted in significant increase in the
sales of FPC. As the gross profit margin for the sales of FPC
increased significantly, the overall gross profit margin for the
year increased to approximately 21.33% (2015: approximately
12.57%).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company in 2016 was
approximately HK$27,944,000, while profit attributable
to owners of the Company in 2015 was approximately
HK$185,000, representing an increase of approximately
15,004.86%. The significant increase in profit was mainly due
to the significant increase in the sales volume of FPC business.
The cumulative revenue from FPC business of the Group for
the year recorded a year-on-year growth of approximately
41.91%.
gradual achievement of economies of scale in FPC business,

The increase in sales revenue demonstrated the

with the gross profit margin for FPC products increased from
approximately 13.41% in last year to approximately 22.39%
in 2016. The profit of FPC business not only covered operation
losses of flexible packaging substrates business, but also
contributed to significant increase in profit.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the other income
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$15,037,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 58.60% as compared
to that of last year. The decrease in other income was mainly
attributed to (i) no supplementary grant/subsidy for “02"
major project titled “Development and Industrialization of
Tape High-Density and Ultra-Thin Flexible Packaging Substrates
Technology” under National Science and Technology Major
Project for year 2014 (“02 Major Project”) was received by the
Group in 2016 from Jiangsu provincial government and the
local government of Gaoxin District in Suzhou City of Jiangsu
Province, while supplementary grant/subsidy in the aggregate
amount of RMB11,877,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,719,000) for the 02 Major Project was received by
the Group in 2015; and (ii) the decrease in other government
subsidies as compared to that of last year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the distribution costs
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$15,897,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.83% as compared
to that of last year. The decrease in distribution costs was
mainly due to the decrease in export of products and trade
business during the year under review, which resulted
in decrease in transportation expense and express fee as
compared to that of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the administrative
expenses of the Group were approximately HK$31,852,000,
representing an increase of approximately 26.23% as compared
to that of last year. The increase in administrative expenses was
mainly due to increase in depreciation and loss of disposal of
fixed asset during the year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the research
and development expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$92,122,000, representing an increase
of approximately 31.00% as compared to that of last year.
The increase in research and development expenses was
mainly attributed to the significant increase in research and
development expenses for development of new products,
new production techniques and automation development for
factories as well as the testing and trial production of the
flexible packaging substrates production lines at Phase Il of
Suzhou Factory.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the finance cost of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$5,198,000, representing
an increase of approximately 44.47% as compared to that of
last year. The increase in finance cost was mainly due to the
increase in bank borrowings and the increase of interest rate of

borrowings.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of FPC and flexible packaging substrates, which are
mainly used for communication, LCD and consumer electronic
products (such as mobile phone, liquid crystal display module,
automobile electronics and camera) and high-end application of
electronic products. The Group is also engaged in the sourcing
and sale of electronic components, and other businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$821,662,000,
representing an increase of approximately 30.29% as compared
to that of 2015. The increase in turnover was mainly due to
the staggering growth in demand from the domestic mobile
phone customers, which resulted in significant increase in the
sales of FPC. During the year under review, the turnover of the
Group for the sales of FPC, the sourcing and sales of electronic
components, and the sales of flexible packaging substrates
were approximately HK$779,019,000, HK$23,036,000 and
HK$19,607,000 respectively, while the turnover for sales of
FPC, the sourcing and sales of electronic components and
the sales of flexible packaging substrates for the year ended
31 December 2015 were approximately HK$548,959,000,
HK$55,403,000 and HK$26,269,000 respectively. In 2016,
the profit attributable to the owners of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$27,944,000, representing an increase
of approximately 15,004.86% as compared to HK$185,000
of 2015. The significant increase in profit was mainly due
to significant increase in the sales volume of FPC business.
The increase in sales revenue demonstrated the gradual
achievement of economies of scale in FPC business, with
the gross profit margin of FPC products increasing from
approximately 13.41% in last year to approximately 22.39% in
2016.
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During the year under review, the turnover for the sales of FPC
business of the Group increased by approximately 41.91% as
compared to that of last year and its gross sales profit margin
increased to approximately 22.39% (2015: approximately
13.41%). The turnover for the sourcing of electronic
components business decreased by approximately 58.42% as
compared to that of last year, while its gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 1.49% (2015: approximately
6.65%). The turnover for the flexible packaging substrates
business decreased by approximately 25.36% as compared
to that of last year, while its gross profit margin decreased to
approximately 2.57% (2015: approximately 7.39%).

During the year under review, the Group recorded a significant
increase in the turnover of its FPC business due to staggering
growth in demand from domestic customers, and the gradual
achievement of economies of scale in FPC business. However,
as the development of flexible packaging substrates business
did not progress as expected, economies of scale was not
achieved and significant operation loss was still recorded for
the flexible packaging substrates business.

The Group has proactively reduced and adjusted the trading
business of electronic components since 2015 in order to
minimize the risks of its trading business. During the year
under review, the sales revenue from the business of electronic
components of the Group further decreased, and no longer had
a material impact on the Group’s business development and
business risks.

During the year under review, the Group continued to increase
investment in research and development. The research
and development expenses increased to approximately
HK$92,122,000, representing an increase of approximately
31.00% as compared to that of last year. Due to the
continuous increase of new application fields of FPC and
flexible packaging substrates and the continuous uplift
of requirements in product structure and complexity by
downstream customers, the Group continued to increase
investment in research and development to continuously
uplift technology standard and technical capability, to conduct
research and development in new materials, new products and
new production techniques and automation transformation
in equipment. During the year under review, the main

development task undertaken by the Group for the 02 Major
Project had been completed and all technical indicators had
been achieved on schedule.
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On 1 April 2014, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) signed a framework purchase agreement (“Existing
Purchase Agreement”) with GoerTek Inc (“GoerTek"”, for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) in relation to the transactions
for selling of parts, components and other products (including
but not limited to FPC products) (“Subject Transactions”). As
the term of the Existing Purchase Agreement expired on 31
December 2016, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and GoerTek (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) renewed the Existing Purchase Agreement on
6 December 2016, by entering into the Renewed Purchase
Agreement (“Renewed Purchase Agreement”) in relation to
the Subject Transactions for a further term of three years
commenced from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December
2019. Such transactions constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The Renewed Purchase Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, as well as the annual caps for each
of the year ending 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2019 were approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 16 January 2017. Details about the terms of
the Renewed Purchase Agreement, the continuing connected
transactions and the annual caps had been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 December 2016 and the
circular dated 29 December 2016. In 2016, the Group sold FPC
and flexible packaging substrates products of approximately
RMB77,735,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$90,822,000)
(2015: approximately RMB23,374,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$28,968,000)) to GoerTek and its subsidiaries,
representing an increase of approximately 213.53% as
compared to that of last year.
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On 25 January 2017, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$133,600,000, net of expenses, by issuing
246,867,500 rights shares (“Rights Shares”) to the qualifying
at the
subscription price of HK$0.55 (“Subscription Price”) per Rights

shareholders by way of rights (“Rights Issue”),

Share to (i) allow the Company to strengthen its financial
position; (ii) increase the capital base of the Company for
future development purposes; and (iii) provide funding to
capture suitable development opportunities principally for
the flexible packaging substrates products as and when they
arise. The Rights Issue had been completed on 13 March 2017.
Details about the Rights Issue were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 25 January 2017, 9 February 2017 and
13 March 2017 as well as the prospectus dated 20 February
2017.

OUTLOOK

The Group has become an authorised supplier for a number
of world-renowned electronic manufacturers. In order to
meet the requirements of the supply chain system of such
customers, the Group has established two production bases:
Southern China Guangzhou Factory and Eastern China Suzhou
Factory. With the gradual uplift of production capability and
scale, the Group's capability to satisfy the “one-stop demand”
of such customers is also largely improved. Following the
stable enhancement in the Group's capability to serve major
international customers, the Group is confident to maintain
a reasonable customer structure through market exploration
and to improve the share of supply to its major customers.
Following the continuous increase of new application
fields of FPC and flexible packaging substrates and the
foreseeable achievement in the research and development of
the production technologies of FPC and flexible packaging
substrates, the Group is confident to seize the market
opportunities in the new application fields and to continuously
improve the operation conditions of FPC and flexible packaging

substrates.
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The management of the Group is of the opinion that the FPC
industry continues to grow despite the sluggish global economy
and the slow down of China’'s economy. The main developing
trend of the current FPC industry is “increasing technological
complexity of products, more intense market competition and
more new application fields”. Looking ahead, the Group will
strive to (i) intensify technology research and development in
order to uplift key technology capabilities and increase product
yield rate; (ii) develop new application fields of FPC and flexible
packaging substrates and maintain and increase the supply for
major customers; and (iii) uplift production and manufacturing
capability with lean management. With more reasonable
customer structure of FPC business and increase of application
opportunities of flexible packaging substrates business, the
Group is expected to seize the development opportunities for
the industry, overcome the difficulties in the development of
flexible packaging substrates business and continue to increase
the operation results, so as to present satisfactory results and
provide favorable returns for its shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations primarily with internally
generated funds from operating activities and existing bank
facilities. It is anticipated that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its present funding requirements. As at 31
December 2016, the outstanding loan balance for the Group
was approximately HK$134,391,000.
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EMPLOYEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 2,175
full-time employees based in Hong Kong and China (2015:
2,023 employees). For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
total labor costs (including Director’s remuneration) for the
Group amounted to approximately HK$177,387,000 (2015:
approximately HK$171,925,000). The Group determines and
reviews the remunerations of its Directors and employees
based on their respective qualifications, experiences,
performances and the market rates, so as to maintain the
remuneration of the Directors and employees at a competitive
level. The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans and insurance schemes in compliance with
the statutory obligations under the laws and regulations of
China and Hong Kong. The Directors believe that being one
of the most important assets of the Group, employees are
important contributors to the success of the Group. The Group
appreciates the importance of staff training, therefore, regular
trainings are provided to the employees to enhance their
technical and product knowledge. The majority of the Group's
employees are stationed in China.

MATERIAL INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material investments during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 25 January 2017, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$133,600,000, net of expenses, by issuing
246,867,500 Rights Shares to the qualifying shareholders by
way of rights, at the Subscription Price of HK$0.55 per Rights
Share. The Rights Issue had been completed on 13 March 2017.
Details about the Rights Issue were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 25 January 2017, 9 February 2017 and
13 March 2017 as well as the prospectus dated 20 February
2017.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2016.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR PURCHASE OF CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
future plans for material investment or purchase of capital asset
as at 31 December 2016.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,356,000 (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$2,356,000) of the Group were pledged as collateral to
secure bank facilities granted to the Group. Trade receivables
of approximately HK$8,677,000 were pledged as collateral to
secure bank facilities granted to the Group (as at 31 December
2015: nil).

As at 31 December 2016,
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$16,818,000
and HK$51,171,000 respectively (as at 31 December 2015:
approximately HK$18,401,000 and HK$56,176,000) were
pledged to secure the general bank facilities granted to the

land use rights and buildings

Group.

As at 31 December 2015, machinery and equipment with
carrying amount of HK$24,139,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
HK$ nil) was pledged to secure the general bank facilities
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2016, the net cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$26,603,000.
As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group
December 2015:
approximately 40.45%), which was calculated based on the
Group's total liabilities of approximately HK$497,594,000 (as
at 31 December 2015: HK$336,353,000) and the Group's total
assets of approximately HK$981,651,000 (as at 31 December
2015: HK$831,541,000).

was approximately 50.69% (as at 31

As at 31 December 2016, AKM Electronics Technology (Suzhou)
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, breached certain financial
covenants as stipulated in the borrowing agreements entered
into by it with carrying amount in aggregate of RMB28,000,000
(equivalent to HK$31,302,000). The relevant borrowing has
been fully repaid subsequent to 31 December 2016.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly
denominated in US dollars and RMB, while the assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in HK dollars and RMB.
The Group is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures, primarily with respect to US dollars
and RMB. The operating results and the financial position of
the Group may be affected by any changes in the exchange
rates, the Group has not taken any hedging measures in this
regard. Furthermore, the conversion of RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the foreign
exchange control rules and regulations promulgated by the
Chinese government. However, taking into account the Group's
current operation and capital requirements, the Directors do
not consider the Group as a subject to any material foreign

exchange risk.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

CLOSURE OF SHARE REGISTER FOR ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Persons who hold shares of the Company and whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company as at
23 May 2017 shall be entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting (“AGM"), which is to be held on 26
May 2017. To be qualified to attend the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2017. The Register of Members
of the Company will be closed from 23 May 2017 to 26 May
2017 (both days inclusive) for the purposes of the AGM during

which no transfer of shares will be effected.
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INTRODUCTION

Save for the deviation as disclosed in this report, the Company
had complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (collectively “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules by establishing formal and
transparent procedures to protect and maximize the interests of
shareholders during the year under review.

As Mr. Bi Keyun did not seek for renewal of his appointment
as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
upon the expiry of his term on 3 February 2016, the number
of independent non-executive Directors and the number of
members of the audit committee of the Company fall below
the minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules respectively since 4 February 2016. Further,
the requirement that the remuneration committee should
comprise a majority of independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules could not be complied with
since 4 February 2016. The Company appointed Mr. Cui Zheng
as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company with effect from 3 May 2016. Accordingly,
Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules have been
complied with since 3 May 2016.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less favorable
than the standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Model Code of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
on all Directors, it is confirmed that the Directors have complied
with such code of conduct and the standard of dealings

regarding securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

During the year under review, the Board consisted of 2
executive Directors and 6 non-executive Directors of whom 3
were independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Li Ying Hong

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang

Mr. Jia Junan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Zhao Xiao

Mr. Bi Keyun (retired on 4 February 2016)
Mr. Cui Zheng (appointed on 3 May 2016)

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategy planning, business development,
risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for the Board’s approval before
reporting to the public, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal control and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules
and regulations. During the year under review, the Board and
its audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee have performed corporate governance duties in
accordance with the functions set out in the Code Provision
D.3.1.
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Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman and
other Directors of the Company are set out on pages 7 to 14 of
this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out
his duties effectively and efficiently. There is no relationship
among the members of the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed one
independent non-executive Director. All appointed directors
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification to
carry out their duties to protect the interests of shareholders.
Mr. Cui Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 3 May 2016 for a term of three
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Zhao Xiao and Mr.
Cui Zheng are independent non-executive directors. Mr. Hung

years.

Chi Yuen Andrew was appointed from 17 October 2011 and
renewed his appointment for a term of three years commenced
from 17 October 2014. Mr. Zhao Xiao was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years commenced from 16 February 2015. Mr. Bi Keyun was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of three years commenced from 4 February 2013. Mr.
Bi Keyun did not seek for renewal of his term of office as an
independent non-executive Director upon the expiry of his
term on 3 February 2016 due to his retirement. All of them are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

Under the Code Provision A.4.2, every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director confirming his independence to the
Company. Based on such confirmations of independence, the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

During the year under review, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng was
the chairman and Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang was the chief executive

officer.
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The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer were
segregated and were not exercised by the same individual
during the year under review. The chairman’s responsibility was
to manage the Board while the chief executive officer's was to
manage the business of the Company.

The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.

Details of the attendance of the meetings of the members of
the Board during the year under review are as follows:

REBFER TREMTHRES ZBEEME
D WHAR-AEE - TREIBEREEES
E MITRARZBEREEARARAZER-

N

EXesFOeRTERKEBIIFERE-

EEERAEDEFENLERFR R
BT

Attendance
Directors 2= R #
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng ARIE & 5o A& 4/4
Mr. Chai zhi Qiang Bt 4/4
Ms. Li Ying Hong TRRAT 2 4/4
Mr. Gao Xiaoguang B E 4/4
Mr. Jia Junan BEELEE 4/4
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEELAE 4/4
Mr. Zhao Xiao B L 4/4
Mr. Bi Keyun (retired on 4 February 2016) EanoktE (R E—X"F_AWNBRMET) 0/4
Mr. Cui Zheng (appointed on 3 May 2016) EFEE(RZE—"FRA-HEZMT) 3/4

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
members of the Board will meet on other occasions when a
board-level decision on a particular matter is required. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision in
advance of each board meeting.
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Company engaged a
professional training institution to provide all directors
with relevant training on corporate risk and financial risk
management, latest amendments to risk management and
internal controls and Environmental, Social and Governance
Report. All Directors had complied with the requirements
set out in the Code Provision A.6.5 by participating in
the continuous professional development, developing and
refreshing their knowledge and skills, in order to ensure that
their contribution to the Board would remain informed and
relevant.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee with written
terms of reference in accordance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review and monitor the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal control system of the Group
and provide advice and comments on the Company's draft
of annual reports and accounts and half-year reports. During
the year under review, the audit committee comprised of
three members, namely Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Zhao
Xiao and Mr. Cui Zheng. All of them were independent non-
executive directors. The chairman of the audit committee
was Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew. As the term of office of Mr.
Bi Keyun expired on 3 February 2016 and he did not seek
for renewal of his appointment as a member of the audit
committee with effect from 4 February 2016, the number
of members of the audit committee fell below the minimum
number required under Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules since 4
February 2016 until the Company appointed Mr. Cui Zheng as

a member of the audit committee of the Company with effect
from 3 May 2016. Accordingly, Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
have been complied with since 3 May 2016.
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During the year under review, four meetings were held by
the audit committee. Details of the attendance of the audit
committee meetings are as follows:

EZZE@ROBEFEARITOREE B
ZEEgRCHFELEFBOT

Attendance
Directors BE=E R E
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEEEAE 4/4
Mr. Zhao Xiao B L 4/4
Mr. Bi Keyun (retired on 4 February 2016) EanoktE (R ZE—X"F_AWNBRMET) 0/4
Mr. Cui Zheng (appointed on 3 May 2016) Eﬁ??ﬁi(ﬁé_;*/\iﬁﬂ:ﬁﬁééfi) 3/4

The Group's unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2016 and audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2016 had been reviewed by the audit committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosure were made,

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in August 2005
with written terms of reference. During the year under review,
the remuneration committee comprised of three members.
Mr. Zhao Xiao, an independent non-executive director, was
the chairman of the committee. Other members of the
remuneration committee included Ms. Li Ying Hong and Mr.
Cui Zheng. Accordingly, the majority of the members were
independent non-executive directors. As the term of office
of Mr. Bi Keyun expired on 3 February 2016 and he did not
seek for renewal of his appointment as a member of the
remuneration committee with effect from 4 February 2016, the
requirement that the remuneration committee should comprise
a majority of independent non-executive Directors under Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules could not be met since 4 February
2016. The Company appointed Mr. Cui Zheng as a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
3 May 2016. Accordingly, Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules have
been complied with since 3 May 2016.
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The role and function of the remuneration committee included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and the provision of recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and feasibility of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, two meetings were held by the
remuneration committee. Details of the attendance of the
remuneration committee meeting are as follows:

Pz E e RS EREEERITES 2N
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il APACIE N

REBFER FWHEZESABITMAGE &
EHEFHEEegR ZBHBET:

Attendance
Directors B=E R E
Mr. Zhao Xiao I S A 2/2
Ms. Li Ying Hong TRRAT 22+ 2/2
Mr. Bi Keyun (retired on 4 February 2016) ERAtE(RZE—R"F-ANABEMT) 0/2
Mr. Cui Zheng (appointed on 3 May 2016) EFEE(RZE—"EFRA-HEZMT) 1/2

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of
the executive Directors and those of appointment letters of
the independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee of the Company considers that the existing terms
of employment contracts of the executive Directors and
appointment letters of the independent non-executive Directors
are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 22 March 2012
with written terms of reference. During the year under review,
the nomination committee comprised of three members.
The chairman of the committee was Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng.
Other members included Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew and Mr.
Zhao Xiao. Accordingly, the majority of the members were

independent non-executive Directors.
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The nomination committee shall review the structure, size
and composition of the Board (including skills, knowledge,
experience, past performance and qualification, etc.) and assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
the adequacy of Corporate Governance Code. The committee
is responsible for formulating nomination policy, identifying
candidates for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the nomination, appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession plan of Directors.

The Company acknowledges that the diversification of the
members of the Board has positive effects on enhancing the
Group’s performance. The Company sees the diversification
of the members of the Board as an important supporting
factor for the Group to achieve its strategic goal and maintain
sustainable growth. In deciding the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural
and academic background, race, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and terms of services. All of our Directors
are appointed according to the principle of meritocracy while
all candidates are being selected objectively, and the benefit
of Board diversity will also be taken into full consideration.
The nomination committee will review the diversity of the
composition of the Board on regular basis, and will monitor the
implementation of this policy, so as to ensure this policy has

been effectively implemented.

During the year under review, one meeting was held by the
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nomination committee. Details of the attendance of the FHFERFHZECEHZLHEABOT:
nomination committee meeting are as follows:

Attendance
Directors 2= R #
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng ARIE & 5o A& 1/1
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEERLE 1/1
Mr. Zhao Xiao A 11

The nomination committee considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors should be recommended to be retained by
the Company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company was responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit function performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.
During the year under review, the Group was required to pay
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$760,000 to the
external auditor for their audit service.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, and confirmed that the financial
statements of the Company were prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any undisclosed material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen was appointed as the company secretary
on 13 June 2011. Ms. Hung Ching Yuen is an external
service provider to the Company and a solicitor practicing in
Hong Kong. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required by the Listing Rules. The
primary contact person between the Company and Ms. Hung
Ching Yuen is Mr. Jiang Maoping, officer responsible for

compliance and legal matters.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company conducted regular review on its internal
control system and risk management procedure to ensure its
effectiveness and adequacy. The Company convened meetings
periodically to discuss financial, operational, compliance
and risk management control. The Group’'s internal risk
management control and procedure is designed to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems. Through the audit committee, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and is of the
opinion that the resources for and qualifications of staff of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. The Board is satisfied with present
internal control.

AUDITOR

During the year under review, the performance of the external
auditor of the Company was reviewed. It is proposed to
reappoint the external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. The Company
has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
and investors in compliance with the Listing Rules and uses
a number of formal communications channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the Company. These include
(1) the publication of announcements and notices, financial
information and corporate governance information available on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
the Company; (2) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting provide a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board; (3) information@akmcompany.com, an email specifically
set up by the Company for communications with investors and
provide timely replies to the enquires from investors; (4) the
provision of services for shareholders through the Company's
registered office and share registrar in Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 65 of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Directors may, whenever they
think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting, and an
extraordinary general meeting shall also be convened upon
request by shareholders of the Company as provided by the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of the Laws of Hong Kong
("Companies Ordinance”), or, in default, may be convened by
the shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting.

According to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call an extraordinary general
meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote
at general meetings. Shareholders of the Company may deposit
at the registered office of the Company a written request,
which shall state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting and include the text of the resolution
to be proposed at the meeting, and shall be signed by the
shareholders who made the demand. Where the Directors do
not, within twenty one days from the date of depositing the
demand, duly convene an extraordinary general meeting to be
held on a day not later than 28 days after the date on which
the notice convening the meeting is given, the shareholders
who made the demand or shareholders representing more than
half of the voting rights of such shareholders may convene an
extraordinary general meeting themselves in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which extraordinary general
meetings may be convened by the Directors of the Company,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders who
made the request as a result of the failure of the Directors
to duly convene an extraordinary general meeting shall be

reimbursed by the Company.
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There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the Companies Ordinance.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
following the programme set out in the preceding paragraph.

In relation to proposing a person for election as a director,
please refer to the programe available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company's registered office in
Hong Kong at Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor, West Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also send such enquiries and concerns to
information@akmcompany.com, an email specifically set up by
the Company for investor communications.
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The Group is pleased to present its first Environmental, Social
and Governance Report which is prepared in accordance with
the "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report mainly
reports on the performance of corporate social responsibility
of the Group during the period from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2016. The Group is committed to improving
its strategy and management of environment, society and
governance through enhancement of infrastructure, internal
participation and external partnership to achieve a balanced
and win-win situation between interests of shareholders and
the society.

STAKEHOLDERS' PARTICIPATION

The Group has established a number of channels to allow
related institutions and individuals in the society (the
“stakeholders”), to participate in the Group's operations so as
to understand and oversee the Group’s operating performance.
We are committed to creating a harmonious community with
various co-existing interests, thus maximizing overall social
benefits including the corporate benefits. Stakeholders can
participate in the operation of the Company through the
following means:

Channels and
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Key targets means of
and communication and
Stakeholders interests participation Company measures
BRFEA TEHERBER BRZELTANES YNGR i
Shareholders and Protection of shareholders’ Shareholders’ meetings, Publication of notifications and
investors interest, truthfulness, investors conferences and resolutions of the shareholders’
accuracy and timeliness of site visits, disclosure of meetings and disclosure of information
information disclosure. information (including of the Company in accordance with
financial statement) and rules; organization of various investor
contact information of the  activities; publication of the Company's
Company. contact information on the Company's
website and reports, and assuring all
communication channels are smooth
and unobstructed.
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Key targets

Channels and
means of

and communication and
Stakeholders interests participation Company measures
ERBEA TEEBERBEH BESHELTANEE DR
Employees Protection of basic rights, Workers union, Establishment of workers union to
compensation and benefits, communication channels provide workers with a platform to
work environment, between employees and communicate; payment of salaries and
development and promotion  management, opinion boxes, benefits in full and on time; payment of
and occupational health and  staff activities, training and  social security insurance in accordance
safety. education. with law; provision of a healthy and
safe work environment; establishment
of a fair promotion mechanism; cared
about our employees, organization
of employee activities, trainings and
learning activities.
BT ERgRrE RAFME ITg BIHEERERRE MKRUISAM RHEIXRTE: KE
B TERE BREA B B ERM BIED 1B REBHEFMEN ML SR
XREERZE- HEE- RURRE R2OITIERER: BLATH
EAMG BAEET ABBIEY &
PR o
Customers Guarantee of the product Regular visits and maintain ~ Strengthening of quality control,
quality and quantity, long- regular communication assurance of steady production and
term stable co-operation. smooth logistic process; provision of
adequate products; entering into long
term sales agreements with customers.
®P EmmENABRE KPR THED RHEEEEBR. NRnEEH RELERTNEHR
EAE. BoREREEM: RIIRDPWRE -
Government Lawful operations, payment  Site visits, inspections, work  Conduction of operation in accordance
of tax in accordance conference and discussion,  with the law; compliance management,
with the law, production work reports, submissions payment of tax in accordance with the
safety, fulfillment of social and approvals law; strengthening of the Company’s
responsibility. safety management; acceptance of
government supervision, inspection
and examination in accordance with
regulations, active assumption of social
responsibilities.
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Key targets

Channels and
means of

and communication and
Stakeholders interests participation Company measures
ERBEA TEEBERBEIH BESHELTANEE DR
Suppliers and Fair bidding, long-term Public bidding meetings and Fair bidding, select by merit,
contractors stable cooperation and business meetings, reqular  performance of contractual

s ABA

Community and
the public

YN

timely payment.

AYRE REREAE
BB

Job opportunities,
community development,
ecological environment,
compensation and
assistance.

REHS HRBR £
R MEREY-

communications

BREeH ARG AR

B

Co-hosting of community
activities, charity, volunteer
service and co-construction
of the community

KR s AERL:
TRERY tRAREH-

obligations, strengthening of regular
communications, maintenance of long-
term cooperation with quality suppliers
and contractors.

NERG EEEE ROBTAR M
BHEXR HEEHEFNABRER
HiafE-

Promotion of community building
and development, provision of
volunteer service, establishment
of communication channels for
the community and community
members; hosting of community
activities, promotion of the building of
harmonious community.
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AREHENTRKENEREE #
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has complied with international and national
environmental standards and implemented green production
policies to raise energy efficiency and minimise both energy
consumption and pollutant discharge. The production factories
of the Group has passed the certifications of I1ISO 9001
and TS16949 Quality Management System, and 1SO14001
Environmental Management System, and the Guangzhou
Factory has passed the certification of OHSAS18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System. A three-
level monitoring system has been implemented by the Group to
ensure the full compliance with the relevant national standards
for different types of pollutants. During the year under review,
the various emission indexes of the Group has complied fully
with the relative environmental protection standards. No fine
was incurred in relation to the performance of environmental
protection.

Emissions — The Group puts best efforts to control the
amount of emissions which affects the environment,
strengthens its competence in the supervision of environment
and completes installment of online supervision device for
waste water and waste gas, in order to realize real-time
supervision and early warning of major pollution emission
source. As such, the Group is pleased to report that it complied
with national and local laws and regulations on emission
control in relation to the control of waste gas and greenhouse
gas emission, pollution in water and land as well as generation
of harmful and harmless waste in 2016.

Use of resources — The Group insists on the full, reasonable
and effective use of energy as the principle of energy use
and makes every effort to eliminate inefficiencies and uses
energy-saving equipment as well as applies innovative energy-
saving technologies. The target of energy conservation
management plans is to save energy, save resources, reduce
consumption, reduce environmental pollution and improve
economic efficiency. Multiple initiatives have been launched
for energy and resources conservation, optimization of energy
consumption, reduction of environmental pollution and
reduction of power consumption.
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Environment and natural resources — The Group strives to
promote environmental infrastructure, improves environmental
management system to achieve energy conservation, reduction
of emission and clean production, and strives to minimize the
impact of production operations on the environment. The
Group implements full environmental management on the
whole process of specific construction project, introduces pre-
EIA pilot and implements the system of “Three Simultaneities”
for production, namely simultaneous design, construction and
operation of environmental protection facilities and the main
project. For the environmental risk factors such as the emission
of “three wastes” (waste water, waste gas and solid waste) in
the production process, we researched on the establishment
of multi-level risk prevention and control mechanism, and
established strict environmental protection measures, in order
to prevent pollution and protect the ecological environment
from the pollution sources.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employment and recruitment — The Group recruits talents
based on the principle of openness, equality, competition and
merits. It provides equal opportunities to employees, creating
a fair and non-discriminatory work atmosphere. Approximately
99% of the employees of the Group are located in China and
the Group strictly observes the requirements of labor laws and
regulations of China without breaching any relative codes or
regulations. The Company treated every employee in equal
and their employment, benefits and promotion would not be
affected by social identity including their ethnic group, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political

camp and marital status.
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Health and safety — The Group upholds the core principles of
“safety first”, fosters a people-oriented culture and promotes
healthy life and safe workplace. The Group has set safety
objectives and targets in accordance with the standard set
by International Standard OHSAS18001 Occupational Safety
and Health Management System certification and regularly
evaluates OHSAS to ensure compliance with the Group's health
and safety requirements. The Group’s Guangzhou Factory has
passed the certification of OHSAS18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System and Suzhou Factory plans to
get the certification in 2017. In addition to OHSAS, the Group
has also established a safety committee to monitor the Group's
health and safety matters. These internal policies provide the
Group with a framework to ensure timely safety assessment
and to assess the current manufacture process in accordance
with the Government and the Group’s health and safety
standards.

Development and training — The training of the Group
focuses on important issues with all parts covered. In 2016, the
Group conducted training in line with the training requirements
for senior and middle management, professional and technical
personnel, grass-roots management and production operation
staff in accordance with the training requirements of each
position, in order to enhance and improve their knowledge and
working skills. A total of 293 key training programs have been
completed throughout the year, and approximately 1,823 hours
have been devoted to staff training for 12,248 employees.

Labor standard — The Group strictly complies with the
provisions of labor laws and relevant laws and regulation of
China and we employ employees who have reached the legal
working age and hold valid identity documents. The Group
recruits on the basis of fairness, openness and voluntariness,
and does not force labor to sign an illegal labor contract. The
Group employs employees in accordance with the requirements
strictly, and there is no illegal employment. No child labor is
allowed to work in any workplace of the Group. The Group also
employs interns in accordance with the law.
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Management of supply chain — The Group has established a
relatively complete supplier management system. Requirements
of integrity and product quality are made clearly to suppliers in
the processes of introduction of supplier, supplier evaluation,
material procurement, bargaining and supplier replacement to
ensure product quality and supplier’s integrity in management
of supply chain. The Group requires all suppliers of raw material
to provide test reports on hazardous substances issued by
third-party testing institutions and carry out long-term quality
supervision and regular review for all suppliers. In the event
that there is a significant change in the suppliers and/or its
qualification or serious quality problem in the goods, the Group
will stop the supply from the supplier in issue at any time and,
if necessary, revoke the supplier's qualification as a qualified
supplier to ensure the reliability in the quality of our products.

Product responsibility — The Group has adopted the
following measures to improve product safety and quality:
in order to reduce the quality risk in the initial stage of
mass production, a quality assurance team has been set up,
frequency and grade for testing in the initial stage of mass
production has been increased and product quality has been
followed up in a timely manner; special testing equipment to
conduct internal supervision of product quality has been used
and stringent internal quality control procedures have been
implemented; the Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive
("RoHS") of the EU has been complied with and halogen-free

standard has been adopted in the production process.
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B HBREAKE

Anti-corruption — We have formulated a Guideline for
External Relations for staff and entered into Agreement
on United Front of Integrity with suppliers in light of the
actual situation of the Group, in order to strengthen the
corporate governance and internal control, standardize the
operation, safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of the
shareholders and promote the healthy and stable development
of the Company. The Group encourages employees to
report behaviour which are suspected to be corrupted and
establishes a special line and e-mail for complaint. The Group
clearly stipulates that all employees who have committed
corruptive behaviour shall be given corresponding economic
and administrative sanctions and those who have violated the
criminal law shall be sent to the judicial authorities according to
law. During the year under review, such systems played a sound
monitor and prevention role in the Group's risk control and
anti-corruption management and no significant weaknesses
was identified.

Participation in community — The Group attaches
importance in contributing to the community, improving
community through the devotion of time, energy and resources,
offering assistance to poor people or disadvantaged groups,
and improving the living conditions of the community. Looking
ahead, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities
for sustainable development through business operations,
strengthen participation in community, and foster a culture of
dedication within the community.
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ESERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s principal activities are the manufacture and sale
of flexible printed circuit, sourcing and sale of electronic
components as well as the manufacture and sale of flexible
packaging substrates. An analysis of the Group's turnover by
geographical market of its customers and operating segments
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in sourcing of raw materials and equipment for its
subsidiaries and trading of flexible printed circuit and flexible
packaging substrates. The activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future development are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 of this
report and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
15 to 25. These discussions form part of this director’s report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and
operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees,
customers and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the environmental policy and performance
of the Group during the year under review is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 38 to
45. The Environmental, Social and Governance Report form part
of the director’s report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The industry which the Group’s businesses operate in and the
performance of the Group are influenced by changes in market
conditions, technology advancement, evolvement in industry
standards, customers’ demands for the Group’s products,
and changes in preferences of the ultimate customers. The
Group operates its businesses in accordance with various
industry standards and government laws and regulations.
In order to meet the market demands for ever-changing
product functions and new products, the Group has made
relatively substantial investments towards the R&D of new
products and new production technologies, notwithstanding
that the R&D expenses of certain projects are supplemented
by government grants. Further, the majority of the Group's
turnover is generated from a few major customers. Hence, the
Group endeavors to respond to such operational shifts and
market demands in a timely manner, to successfully research
and develop new products and technologies, to maintain good
co-operative relationships with our customers, so as to avoid
and/or minimize the negative impact of such risks. In addition,
the flexible packaging substrates production lines at Phase I
of Suzhou Factory is still in the trial production stage and bulk
orders from customers are small, which becomes one of the
major risk factors of the Group’s performance. The Group is

striving to develop new customers and receive more orders.

Furthermore, the Group is affected by market risks (such as
currency and interest rate fluctuations), credit risks and liquidity
risks during its ordinary course of business. Details of the
financial risks management of the Group is set out in note 24
of the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 70.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year under review in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Li Ying Hong

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang

Mr. Jia Junan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Zhao Xiao

Mr. Bi Keyun (retired on 4 February 2016)
Mr. Cui Zheng (appointed on 3 May 2016)

Pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third, shall retire from office, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last election.
Accordingly, Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang and Ms. Li Ying Hong shall
retire by rotation at the AGM in accordance with the Articles
of Association. Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang has informed the Company
that he would not offer himself for re-election and accordingly
will retire as executive Director (but shall remain as the chief
executive officer of the Company) after the conclusion of the
AGM, while Ms. Li Ying Hong, being eligible, will offer herself
for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Company'’s Articles of Association,
the Board shall have power from time to time, and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Mr. Cui Zheng, an independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Board on 3 May 2016 will also retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting.
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Mr. Bi Keyun did not seek for renewal of his appointment as
an independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit
committee and a member of the remuneration committee upon
the expiry of his term on 3 February 2016 due to his retirement.
During the year under review, no Director resigned from his
office or refused to stand for re-election to his office due to
reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and
thereafter will continue until being terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has been appointed by the Company
under a letter of appointment for a term of three years which
is terminable by not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Details of the Directors and chief executives’ remuneration are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company were as follows:

Name of Subsidiaries

MELAREME

MEBARES

REBEEZZ—R"F+_A=+—HLEFE K
NAIMNB AR ZEERUTALTHMT:

Name of Directors

EENSA

AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd.

ZREM(BEB)EFEEXEFRAA

New Career Guangzhou Electronics
Company Limited
BT LBREFBRAQA

AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou)
Company Limited
ZREMEFRE (FMN)ERAF

Giant Rise Technology Limited
RIAMEBRAR

Shenzhen Giant Rise Electronics
Company Limited
RYBEAENBEFERA

Chai zZhi Qiang (Chairman), Xiong Zheng Feng, Li Ying Hong,
Zhuang Zhijian

SeEnR (F/E)  RRIEE  FHA - HER

Chai zZhi Qiang (Chairman), Zhuang Zhijian, Jiang Maoping

RER(FE) HER BXF

Chai zZhi Qiang (Chairman), Xiong Zheng Feng, Li Ying Hong

KRG (F/F)  RRIEE - FRRAT

Zhuang Zhijian
HERE

Zhuang Zhijian (Chairman), Jiang Maoping, Mo Zhi Dong,
Zheng Ai Hong (Note)
HER (EE) BXF EEL BEL (52)

Note: Zheng Ai Hong resigned her directorship in Shenzhen Giant Rise Electronics 77 HEOR-_Z—"F—ARBHRTFIEHAEZNES
FTHRDBE B -

Company Limited on 5 January 2016.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “"Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

(a) The Company

(i) Interest in shares of the Company

Class and number of

ESERKRM HEROKERE Z2RSE
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(a) &xAF
(i) REZNGRGZEZ

Approximate
percentage of

Name of securities of total number
the Company which interested Long/ of issued shares in
in which (other than under short the Company as at
Name interest is held equity derivatives) Capacity position 31 December 2016
R-ZB-RE
RpER +=RA=+-H
REREEER ERBRIRHE #e/ EARREBERT
HE ZRAER (REFTETARS) 56 KB  ROBEZBNEIHW
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng the Company 6,320,000 Beneficial owner Long 0.64
(Note 1) ordinary shares
REBTE (K1) /N 6,320,000 ¥ @ik EmAEEA e
Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 5,580,000 Beneficial owner Long 0.57
(Note 2) ordinary shares
RERTE (Hit2) /N 5,580,000 K@ik E#RHEEA e
Ms. Li Ying Hong the Company 5,300,000 Beneficial owner Long 0.54
(Note 3) ordinary shares
FRATL (H73) /N 5,300,000 X @il E@RHEEA e
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Notes:

1. On 25 January 2017, the Company proposed to issue
246,867,500 Rights Shares to the qualifying shareholders by
way of rights, at the Subscription Price of HK$0.55 per Rights
Share. The Rights Issue had been completed on 13 March
2017, and the relevant Right Shares had been allotted and
issued to the qualifying shareholders on 13 March 2017. After
the completion of the Rights Issue and as at the date of this
report, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng beneficially owns 7,900,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.64% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report.

2. After the completion of the Rights Issue and as at the date of
this report, Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang beneficially owns 6,975,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.57% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this report.

3. After the completion of the Rights Issue and as at the date
of this report, Ms. Li Ying Hong beneficially owns 6,625,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.54% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this report.

(ii) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company
through equity derivatives

As at 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of
directors, none of the Directors nor chief executive of
the Company had or was deemed to have any interest
in the underlying shares the Company.

(b) The associated corporation

As at 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, none of the Directors nor chief executive of
the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares
or debentures of any associated corporations of the
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO and the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year under review or at the
end of the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year
under review.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, shareholders
(other than Directors) who had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly
or indirectly interested in 10% or more of all issued shares to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any members
of the Group are set out as below:
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Class and number of
securities in

which interested
(other than under

Approximate
percentage of

total number of
issued shares in the
Company as at

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity equity derivatives) 31 December 2016
RZB—X%
BEZEHER TZAZ+—-BHEERDF
R¥A 2HERTROHE
TERRER g} (REFTET AR ZHAESH
(Note 5)
(H1E5)
Alpha Luck Industrial Ltd. Beneficial owner 360,000,000 36.46
(“Alpha Luck”) (Note 1) ordinary shares
ZHEERRRA EREAA 360,000,000/ & i %
([RMEZE]) (K1)
Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd.  Interest in controlled 360,000,000 36.46
(“Silver City") (Note 2) corporation ordinary shares
RERR (EE)BERATA REEHARZES  360,000,0000% & E
([RERR]) (H5#2)
China North Industries Corporation Interest in controlled 360,000,000 36.46
("CNIC") (Note 2) corporation ordinary shares
REJH TEAA REEF AR ZES  360,000,0000% L E K
([EFIED (H52)
Goertek (HongKong) Co., Limited Beneficial owner 290,920,000 29.46
("HK Goertek") (Note 3) ordinary shares
EETREREBERAR ERBEBA 290,920,000% & i %
([BEFBER]) (H:73)
Weifang Goertek Trading Co., Limited Interest in controlled 290,920,000 29.46
(“Weifang Goertek”) (Note 4) corporation ordinary shares
HNBREZSERAA REEBI AT ZERZ 290,920,000 & i@k
(TR (Hit4a)
GoerTek (Note 4) Interest in controlled 290,920,000 29.46
corporation ordinary shares
TR (Hrita) REEEI AR ZER 290,920,000 & i@ %
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After the completion of the Rights Issue and as at the date of this report,
Alpha Luck beneficially owns 450,000,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 36.46% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.

As Alpha Luck is wholly and beneficially owned by Silver City, which in turn
is wholly and beneficially owned by CNIC, both Silver City and CNIC are
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the Company
held by Alpha Luck under Part XV of the SFO.

After the completion of the Rights Issue and as at the date of this report,
HK Goertek beneficially owns 363,650,000 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 29.46% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.

As HK Goertek is wholly and beneficially owned by Weifang Goertek, which
in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by GoerTek, both Weifang Goertek
and GoerTek are deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of
the Company held by HK Goertek under Part XV of the SFO.

None of Alpha Luck, Silver City, CNIC, HK Goertek, Weifang Goertek nor
GoerTek was interested in any securities of the Company under equity
derivatives.

SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save

as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected

Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of

significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

was

a party and in which a shareholder of the Company had

a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year under review or at any time during the year

under review.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

On 25 January 2017, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$133,600,000, net of expenses, by issuing
246,867,500 Rights Shares to the qualifying shareholders by
way of rights, at the Subscription Price of HK$0.55 per Rights
Share. The Rights Issue had been completed on 13 March
2017 and the Rights Shares were allotted and issued to the
Qualifying Shareholders on 13 March 2017. Each of the Rights
Share, which was ordinary share, ranked pari passu in all
respects with the Shares in issue on the date of their respective
allotment and issue. Details about the Rights Issue were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 January
2017, 9 February 2017 and 13 March 2017 as well as the
prospectus dated 20 February 2017.

The company did not issue any debenture during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2016 comprised the retained
profits of HK$77,848,000.

Details of changes in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 73 and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all of its
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the Group's retirement benefits schemes for the

year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 69% of the Group’s turnover
and the turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 29% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 35% of the Group’ s purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12% of the Group’s purchases.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their
respective associates nor any shareholder (who or which to the
best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) has any interest in the top
five customers and top five suppliers of the Group during the

year under review.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which
causes or may cause significant competition with the business
of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 1 April 2014, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) had signed a framework purchase agreement
("Existing Purchase Agreement”) with GoerTek (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries) in relation to the transactions for
selling of parts, components and other products (including
but not limited to FPC products) (“Subject Transactions”).
As the term of the Existing Purchase Agreement expired on
31 December 2016, on 6 December 2016, the Company
(for itself and on behalf of its Subsidiaries) and GoerTek
(for itself and on behalf of its Subsidiaries) renewed the
Existing Purchase Agreement by entering into the Renewed
Purchase Agreement (“Renewed Purchase Agreement”) in
relation to the Subject Transactions for a further term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31
December 2019. Such transactions constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The Renewed Purchase Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, as well as the proposed
annual caps for the three years from 2017 were approved by
the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 16 January 2017. The annual
caps set under the Renewed Purchase Agreement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are
RMB210,000,000, RMB250,000,000 and RMB300,000,000
respectively. Details about the terms of the Renewed Purchase
Agreement, the continuing connected transactions and the
proposed annual caps had been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 December 2016 and the circular dated

29 December 2016.
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According to the Existing Purchase Agreement, the annual caps
of the Continuing Connected Transaction as at 31 December
2016 was RMB140,000,000.

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016, the aggregate amount of the Continuing Connected
Transactions was approximately RMB77,735,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$90,822,000).

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive
Directors) had reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions
and had confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions
were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the Purchase Agreement governing the
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company
has received an unqualified report from the independent
auditor containing their finding and conclusions in respect of
the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the independent
auditor’s report has been provided by the Company to the

Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of

the Continuing Connected Transactions.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The articles of association of the Company provides that every
Director, manager, secretary or officer as well as every auditor
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not entered into
permitted indemnity provisions with the Directors. During the
year under review, the Company has taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance to cover potential legal actions against its
Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made charitable or other donations of
HK$10,000 or above during the year under review (2015: Nil).
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will
be submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

AKM Industrial Company Limited

Xiong Zheng Feng
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF AKM INDUSTRIAL COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AKM Industrial Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
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our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWEFTTENMEERARRTSHE

Allowances for obsolete inventories

REFEZRE

We identified the allowances for obsolete
inventories as a key audit matter because of the
significant degree of management judgment and
estimation to determine the amount of allowances
based on the estimates of the net realisable values
of the inventories.

ARRIBEAERFEST L RECRIRERNEE
BB IREAE R BB MEREFERERTE
RERETSEIE

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, carrying amount of the
Group's inventories as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$79,771,000, net of allowance for obsolete
inventories of HK$8,072,000.

BN A M BHMEMTAMER R —RF+=
A=+—H8 &&EZFREREER79,771,000& T
(EFRERFERE /8,072,000 7T) °

Management of the Group reviewed the aged
analysis of the inventories for production of flexible
printed circuits and flexible packaging substrate at
the end of the reporting period to identify obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items that are no
longer suitable for use in production and to make
allowance to write down to their net realisable
values based on the latest selling prices and current
marketable conditions.
EEEEREEFEZ T X HEEBRRMZETRERRY
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Our procedures in relation to the allowance for obsolete
inventories included:

BPEREFSE
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BHEENEFEE:

Understanding the management’s process of
identifying obsolete and slow moving items and
estimating the net realisable values of the inventories;
EREBEEHRAREREZERHFE ZREREM
BIFEE R E IR F(E R FTER AU UK -

Evaluating the accuracy of the aged analysis of
inventories used by the management, on a sample
basis, by checking the ageing date to date of good
receipt notes or manufacture;

BB BREK A REKEEREER BT
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Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the
inventories by comparing the estimated selling prices
of the inventories, on a sample basis, to the latest
selling price on sales invoices; and

BRBES R KBRFENSIMEEER  AHERE
BHEENAMERFENMGANAEN: &

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance
made by the management of the Group, on a sample
basis, by comparing the allowance made in prior year
to actual amount of obsolete inventories.
BBWMEIRN EBREFIFHNBEFEEREFENE
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Key audit matter

BREBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNEFTTENAEERRENSR

Allowance for doubtful debts
R

We identified the allowance for doubtful debts
as a key audit matter due to significant degree of
management judgement involved in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables.
HRTEESREKIBRREE S REREENE
BREAE  BRMEE S EKFIBRRKERER
R ETFIE-

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the balance of allowance for doubtful
debts as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$41,000 and the impairment loss recognised on
receivables for the year then ended amounted to
HK$1,096,000.

BANER G S REM 16 EE - R —R"F+=
A=1t—0 BE&BZREREERR41,00087T "
HpRBaERPHEZRREHBR1,096,0008 7T

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management regularly reviews the
recoverability and aging of the trade receivables
and allowances are applied to trade receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicated
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates.
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Our procedures in relation to the allowance for doubtful
debts included:
B ERRBEEENEF S

e Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
receivables, on a sample basis, by reference to the
aged analysis of trade receivables and settlement
received subsequent to the year end, with focus on
debts which are past due but not impaired;
BEMESR SHHEAACBHESRRRIEZ LD
FORMAERENEZRWRBENRERD T EES
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e  Evaluating the accuracy of the aged analysis of the
trade receivables, on a sample basis, by checking the
ageing date to the invoice dates; and
BRAMESA BRELAZERNEE IE SRR
BRI DT ERM &

e  Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance
made by the management, on a sample basis, by
comparing the allowance made in prior year to actual

amount of doubtful debts resulted.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEZERAF

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M BRD R S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Li Kin Fai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEZERAF

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBEaRkHEMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+-A=1+—HIFFEF

2016 2015
ZB-RF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iigza FHET FAT
Revenue WA 5 821,662 630,631
Cost of sales 8 & A A (646,373) (551,392)
Gross profit E 7 175,289 79,239
Other income E A 6 15,037 36,321
Distribution costs DI A (15,897) (16,360)
Administrative expenses T (31,852) (25,234)
Research and development expenses #ff 3 & Fi (92,122) (70,324)
Finance costs BB A 7 (5,198) (3,598)
Profit before taxation FR 25 A A 8 45,257 44
Taxation 18 9 (17,567) (366)
Profit (loss) for the year AKELmF (FE) 27,690 (322)
Other comprehensive expense: HM2MEAX:
ltem that may be subsequently PBERA B EERER
reclassified to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange differences arising on BMEGIEBES
translation of ZEHERE
foreign operations (36,571) (25,509)
Total comprehensive expense AFEEEEMAYERE
for the year (8,881) (25,831)
Profit (loss) for the year JEMEARFERF (FEE) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ SN 27,944 185
Non-controlling interests FEVE MR M A (254) (507)
27,690 (322)
Total comprehensive expense B M85
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ ¥ =IN (8,543) (25,257)
Non-controlling interests FE5 R (338) (574)
(8,881) (25,831)
2016 2015
—E-ARF —E—hF
(Restated)
(&E5))
Earnings per share — basic BRAEN-EX 11 HK2.72 cents &4l HK0.02 cents 71l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR OR &

At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—NF+—-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz FHET FHET
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% WEREE 12 474,339 462,072
Prepaid lease payments FENMEERE 13 47,147 51,600
Available-for-sale investment AHPECIRE 14 16,769 17,904
Deposits for property, plant and W% WEREE
equipment 2R ® 2 15,363 7,284
553,618 538,860
Current assets MEEE
Inventories S 15 79,771 63,772
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i R IE 16 318,121 192,440
Prepaid lease payments FENFERE 13 1,182 1,262
Pledged bank deposits EHERIRITER 17 2,356 2,356
Bank balances and cash wITEBRIES 18 26,603 32,851
428,033 292,681
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A e RIE 19 321,807 176,855
Deferred income BT A 20 2,395 822
Taxation payable JE AR I8 6,829 1,981
Bank borrowings BITEE 21 134,391 119,410
465,422 299,068
Net current liabilities FRBEE (37,389) (6,387)

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 516,229 532,473
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B OR &

At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—NF+—-A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
ok FET FATT
Capital and reserves s A K%
Share capital % A 23 333,161 333,161
Reserves ] 150,265 158,808
Equity attributable to owners of KRARHE AEGER
the Company 483,426 491,969
Non-controlling interests JEE IR = 631 3,219
Total equity B 484,057 495,188
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income PRIE U A 20 25,045 27,539
Bank borrowings RITIEE 21 - 6,856
Deferred taxation EER IR 22 7,127 2,890
32,172 37,285
516,229 532,473

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 155 were BEE@RN T —+F=F - MBI ETF#E
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  FZ 57021558 2 4R A Bk - Wik T 7=

24 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: EREEZ:
LI YING HONG XIONG ZHENG FENG
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
ZIRAL RE IF %

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ARBEBEDRE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z — =

—ANFFZA=F—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEAEMS

Non-
Share Translation Retained controlling
capital reserve profits Total interests Total
FER
&N BREFE REBER “E ER “rE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET FHT
At 1 January 2015 RZE—hAF—H—H 333,161 58,245 125,820 517,226 3,793 521,019
Profit (loss) for the year REFHRF (FE) - - 185 185 (507) (322)
Other comprehensive expense — Hth 2 g &% - (25,442) - (25,442) (67) (25,509)
Total comprehensive (expense) ANFE2E (F X)W
income for the year FEE - (25,442) 185 (25,257) (574) (25,831)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—0%F
+=—A=+—8” 333,161 32,803 126,005 491,969 3,219 495,188
Profit (loss) for the year REERN (FBE) - - 27,944 27,944 (254) 27,690
Other comprehensive expense  H fth 2 & 5 5% - (36,487) - (36,487) (84) (36,571)
Total comprehensive (expense) AFE2M (FX)Kzm
income for the year Fok- - (36,487) 27,944 (8,543) (338) (8,881)
Dividend paid BT E - - - - (2,250) (2,250)
At 31 December 2016 RZZB—RE
+=ZA=+-— 333,161 (3.684) 153,949 483,426 631 484,057
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEHREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation B 350 A 7 45,257 44
Adjustments for: HTIEBEELFAE:
Interest expense B 5,198 3,598
Interest income FEMA (88) (65)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) REREE (BERED)
for doubtful debts 1,096 (71)
Allowance for obsolete inventories REFEREE 1,546 3,346
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T~ 78 & SR8 4 8 1,236 1,311
Depreciation of property, W WE REE
plant and equipment ZHE 46,224 38,141
Foreign exchange difference on CSENAPNSIISE-S
inter-company balances ZER =% 761 (4,806)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE K
plant and equipment BB BB 4,498 505
Deferred income recognised B R EERA (6,389) (19,480)
Operating cash flows before movements & & & & & B i £ &
in working capital BemneE 99,339 22,523
Increase in inventories HFEEN (23,491) (10,719)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 N E W ERIA
other receivables (3 n) R A (144,881) 2,819
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E b &S FRIEIE N 160,165 27,066
Government grant received AT R B A 7,306 15,429
Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 98,438 57,118
Hong Kong profits tax refund REIFBREH 78 408
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB CEMSH (7.826) (1,336)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEXKEMESRLSFE 90,690 56,190
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  KERZEE
plant and equipment RIE 1,050 4,963
Interest received 2 B 88 65
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE 1% B E MR E (104,210) (113,244)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXBHERESEE (103,072) (108,216)

|
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEL
New borrowings raised EEs 215,647 226,002
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIETIEE (200,527) (172,788)
Interest paid B F B (5,198) (3,598)
Dividend paid to non-controlling AT FEIE R AR AR B
shareholders (2,250) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES TEXBHESREEHE 7,672 49,616
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BeERFALEHEHEHR
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA FEE (4,710) (2,410)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNERESRREESHEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 32,851 33,836
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE NEERSE 2 HE
RATE CHANGES (1,538) 1,425
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREEREALESHEHIEHR
AT END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING MEETE#RRES
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26,603 32,851

Vi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability on 9 December 1993.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 18 August 2004. On 18 June 2014, the Company
transferred the listing of its shares from GEM to the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The registered office of
the Company is situated at Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong, and the principal place of business
of the Company is situated at 63 Huan Shi Road South,
Information Technology Park, Nansha District, Guangzhou
City, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") while the functional currency
of the Company is HK$. The reason for selecting Hong
Kong dollars as its presentation currency is because the
Company is a public limited company in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and
is engaged in sourcing of raw materials and equipment
for its subsidiaries and trading of flexible printed
circuits (“FPC"). Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacture and sale of FPC, sourcing and sale of
electronic components and manufacture and sale of

flexible packaging substrates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEEERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

R RSB B RBMBREE
B([EBUHH/EEM]) (&)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

AEEAAREFEB THNEBMEERKRE
M HR] MARIET BB M B RE LR :

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to

HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’
Leases?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Disclosure Initiative*
Recognition of Deferred

Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements
for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’'s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact
on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets. The Group’s available-for-sale investments,
including those currently stated at cost less impairment,
will either be measured as fair value through profit or loss
or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the
designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss
model may result in early provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes

effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2016

= B 5 R AR MY A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to

deal with specific scenarios.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$411,000 as disclosed
in note 27. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the
following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing
cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect
of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair

values; and (v) other changes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (Cont’d)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier
application permitted. The application of the amendments
will result in additional disclosures on the Group’s
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities will be provided on application.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. FEEHFE (£)

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company:

e has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. FEEHE (£)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers in
the normal course of business. Revenue is reduced for
estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments including cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rationale
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they become receivable.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. DK (&)
Leasehold land and building (Cont'd) HELTHRER (&)

HEFRBAENAEOEE EEHEZH
ErEsRNRA BB R R BN
HERR] REGFINHEHAN#EE -8
TARBER T MBFE DA DB -
EEME-ROBRREHE UEAY
X BEIREIE-

BB

R RE A A A IR RETE AN SR B A B ST H AT
B 168 4 0 352 213 Bk B B SR A BR

BT R R TOTA AR SR (B S Bt 4l (B DR B 2 1R
AN HERR B RS HIR A Rt N 1R s P fE
RBoLHE UBRAKERE 2iEIK
BIERDEBEERSETZ RN ZBUFERTIRN
FAEMBRRRERRETWA AR E
MEECARFHABRGARERBER

EiB#@me

RERErAEBECEEARAXIBRNEE
RSB IR BN A B (1 K 2R AE B
AR) 2z FEMER R - TR EUHAE I R 2
HER -



Annual Report 2016 —Z—XE&#

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. FEEHE (£)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those asset until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. FEEHFE (£)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Retirement benefits contributions

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - FE—NF+ _-A=41—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
(Cont’d)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets or buildings borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEHHFE (£)

Impairment loss on tangible assets (Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated to assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEZERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. XTEEHHE (£)

Research and development expenditure (Cont’d)
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined as the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. FEEHHFE (£)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into available-
for-sale financial asset and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that requires delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale financial asset is an non-derivative that is
either designated or not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrument are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investment that does not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Such unquoted
equity investment is measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEHHFE (£)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) ¢®IE (&)
Impairment of financial assets 2HEEZHE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period of 30 to 120 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. EBE:HE (£&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) EWMIAE(E)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments 2HEBERKRATA

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and

bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those

parts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EEETTEE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d) SWMIA(E)

Derecognition (Cont’d) BUEER (&)

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only EREEASEETERR TUSE
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled R AEEFUHBERES B AE - BUEHER
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of ZemBERAERCNIENREZE
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration BIREEPER -

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. R TRAPRERZEERT

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are also discussed below.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are based on the expected
lifespan and original cost of those property, plant and
equipment respectively. The useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment could change
significantly as a result of technical obsolescence. When
the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment are different from their estimated useful
lives and residual values due to the change of commercial
and technological environment, such differences will cause
an impact on the depreciation charges and the amounts of
assets written down for future periods.

> R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4., HEFTFHBRZEZETERIR (£&)

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment for
the Group as at 31 December 2016 are HK$474,339,000
(2015: HK$462,072,000).

Allowance for obsolete inventories

The management reviews an aged analysis of the
inventories for production of flexible printed circuits and
flexible packaging substrate at the end of the reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for such finished goods and
work in progress based on the latest selling prices and
current marketable conditions. If the net realisable value
of inventories is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the inventories is reduced
to its net realisable value.

The carrying amount of inventories for the Group
as at 31 December 2016 is HK$79,771,000 (2015:
HK$63,772,000), net of allowance for obsolete inventories
of HK$8,072,000 (2015: HK$7,040,000).

NE - BERRBZIRFHRIGREE
&t (&)

REEBWR-_ZT—XR"F+_A=+—8B2ZY
¥ WEKRERTEEA474,339,0008 7T
—ZE T4 462,072,000/ 7T) °

REFERE

EEENREPRBREEZEEER KL
FZUHHEERNTERRY T WHER
RTIBEERAREECRERFHTFEE
BERBE ERERBER A BEE
RPN ZERN MR MR R Z
AR FE - WFEZAUZRFAEMGEE
LPREEFEEE MeNZTEZEREAER
WEEMEEFE-

AEEBR-_ZE—A"F+ZA=1+—H0Z
FERMEEA79,771,0008 L (- E—H
% :63,772,000/8 ) (KEHMBRMREFTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HIFFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4, HEFTHBRZZETERER (£&)

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Allowance for doubtful debts

The management regularly reviews the recoverability and
aging of the trade and bills receivables. Allowances are
applied to trade and bills receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on the
estimation of the future cash flow discounted at the
financial assets original effective interest rate to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows and
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will cause an impact on carrying amounts of
trade and bills receivables and doubtful debts expenses in
the year in which such estimate is changed.

The carrying amount of trade and bills receivables at
31 December 2016 for the Group are HK$297,313,000
(2015:HK$161,765,000), net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$41,000 (2015: HK$6,666,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for the sales of FPC, electronic components,
manufacture and sale of flexible packaging substrates
to external customers, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers
("CODM"), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on type of
goods delivered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-A=+—HIFFEF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER (£)
(Cont’d)
Segment information (Cont'd) DEER (&)
For management purposes, the Group is currently RFNER  REERB=EXH 504
organised into three operating divisions, namely the B BNBE M E R ERIR  RIEREE
manufacture and sale of FPC, sourcing and sale of BF TR UAREERIEEFRUEHEER
electronic components and manufacture and sale of EB -ZENHANAEBAEELERE
flexible packaging substrates. These divisions are the basis EWMEEDMER 2 B
on which the Group reports its segment information to the
CODM.
Principal activities are as follows: FEEBNT
FPC business - the manufacture and sale of FPC FUERR — HEREEFRU
7% B IR
Sourcing and sale - the sourcing and sale of RELHE — KRBLRHEEST
of electronic electronic components B ToER
components Ey
business
Flexible packaging -  the manufacture and sale of FHEHEER — HERHEEFRN
substrates flexible packaging substrates Eyi HEER

business
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F—NNF+=-A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSHEHR (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment revenue and results PEHBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBZABRHRDIBE D 2 WA REESD
results by reportable segment. W e

Segment revenue

- external sales Inter-segment sales Eliminations Segment results
2BEA
—HBHE SHEHE s FBEE

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

“E-RE ZT-1F ZB-XF ZT-RF ZB-Xf ZT-hFf ZB-XE —T-RF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR FET TR FET TR FiET TR FiET

FPC business FUERRES 779,019 548,959 2,120 78,110 (2,120)  (78,110) 115,893 36,141
Sourcing and sale of electronic ¥ R IEEE T LB

components business 23,036 55,403 - 38,014 - (38,014) 33 1,372
Flexible packaging substrates R HEEREHR

business 19,607 26,269 4,562 824 (4,562) (824)  (42,826)  (12,965)
Total At 821,662 630,631 6,682 116948 (6,682) (116948 73,100 24,548
Interest income FEKA 88 65
Central administration costs RRATHAL AR (22,733) (20,971)
Finance costs BERK (5,198) (3,598)
Profit before taxation BBt A& 45,257 44
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the AR &2 Gt R Ty B 3pT it 2
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note REESFTHEAR -5 imFES D
3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each FRBRER 2 i A1 - 1B 30 R ph AR RATERR S ~
segment without allocation of central administration costs, BEWMARBEXSREHDE -T2 ®MT
interest income and finance costs. This is the measure PITER (AEBMZFELEREKE) BIE
reported to the Executive Directors, the Group’'s CODM, BRAERFFHERE 2 -

for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHEHR (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment assets and liabilities ITHEEHEER
Segment assets T EEE
2016 2015
—B-RF —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
FPC business M EIEIRERS 754,595 596,833
Sourcing and sale of electronic HEREEETFTRGED
components business 8,870 12,084
Flexible packaging substrates business 2214 & 2 Z AR ¥ 7% 172,458 169,513
Total segment assets Mo EE 935,923 778,430
Unallocated assets AOBEEE 45,728 53,111
Consolidated assets SLEEE 981,651 831,541
Segment liabilities DHBEE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —EF—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T T
FPC business FUHERRER 341,652 202,858
Sourcing and sale of electronic REMEEEFTRUER
components business 107 963
Flexible packaging substrates business 2214 & 2 E AR ¥ 7% 7,488 1,395
Total segment liabilities woHEE 349,247 205,216
Unallocated liabilities AP EE 148,347 131,137
Consolidated liabilities maBfE 497,594 336,353
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - FE—NF+ _-HA=41—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHER (&)

(Cont’d)

Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) DHEEHEEE (&)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and BERSERELESDBZESIEE

allocating resources between segments: D

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other - FEBREHESEZE0 RO MHE
than available-for-sale investment, pledged bank TEFEIHBEZIEE S EMAET
deposits and bank balances and cash. GEHRARIBITEHRRES -

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - FEBAEHESERZE BRI
other than bank borrowings, taxation payable and FTEEETEE EAHEELRELER
deferred taxation. I o

Other segment information H 5 2 g

2016 —E—-XKE

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss HES BRI BEERBFE 2 RE

or segment assets:

Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
RERHE
FUEBRR EfusEl RHHEER
% ¥% %% A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER

Allowance for doubtful debts AEEE 784 312 - 1,096

Allowance for obsolete inventories REFERRE 679 - 867 1,546

Addition to non-current assets (note)  REIERBEE (Hit) 51,224 - 44,061 95,285

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 8 (& 778 % 85 1,236 - - 1,236

Depreciation of property, mE BRERBETE

plant and equipment 33,010 - 13,214 46,224

Release of government grant for BHAREIHEERER

construction of factory on existing HEIER 2 BT 28

land and research and

development projects (4,286) - (2,103) (6,389)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERSEIER

plant and equipment 4,498 - - 4,498
Research and development expenses & &/ 47,736 - 44,386 92,122
Note: Non-current assets represent property, plant and equipment. Wiz ERBEERYYL BERRE-

L7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER (£Z)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HitppHER (&)

2016 (Cont’d) —E-XE(£E)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included EHREREEREERBZFABRTE
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment BNt B BBRN D BEE KA
assets:
Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
REREE
FUHERR EFnEt FUHEER
5% 5% % ik =y
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR
Interest income FlEMA (79 (2) (7 (88)
Interest expenses B 5,198 - - 5,198
Income tax expense (credit) MERES (He) 17,613 (46) - 17,567
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHEHR (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HibpHER (&)
2015 —E-1F
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss AEOHERI N MBEER B ZHIA:

or segment assets:

Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
RERHEE
ZHERR EFnEN FUHEER
£% £% %% AEast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FET FTER
Reversal of doubtful debts REEED (35) (36) - 71
Allowance for (reversal of) obsolete BREFERE (BERD)
inventories 3,573 (277) 50 3,346
Addition to non-current assets (note) ~ AEFREBEE (Mfit) 87,146 - 35,439 122,585
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 {7 & 5 7H # & 1,311 - - 1,311
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BREREEITE
plant and equipment 27,115 61 10,965 38,141
Release of government grant EHRRA T ERRE R
for construction of factory HEIBEE 2 BT 2R
on existing land and research and
development projects (1,676) - (17,804) (19,480)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BELEEZER
plant and equipment 505 - - 505
Research and development expenses s 38,611 - 31,713 70,324

Note: Non-current assets represent property, plant and equipment. Hiat: ERBDEERDE BERK
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHEHR (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HitppHER (&)
2015 (Cont'd) —E-HF(#)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included EHRFELERFEERB LS 1515 ™8
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment BEREFTE D BRI DB EE 2K
assets:
Sourcing
and sale of Flexible
electronic packaging
FPC components subtracts Segment
business business business total
RRERHEE
ZHEREIR BYnEf  ZHHRER
£% £% £ pEas
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR FHL
Interest income FEHA (57) (6) ) (65)
Interest expenses FERX 3,598 - - 3,598

Income tax expense MERAS 145 221 - 366
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas —
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong (country
of domicile). The following table provides an analysis
of the Group’s revenue from external customers by the
geographical location of the customer:

5.

WARDEER (&)

AEERMEIEMREL -—FEH(TE
BEE)REE (EMARLE) - TR
TARKEREFPIEMIBAE 85 R E I
MEPZBAZIHT:

Revenue from
external customers

REMBEEZWA
2016 2015
=F-AF —ZT-IF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
PRC other than Hong Kong FE(TRIERE) 450,841 277,657
Hong Kong B 279,598 248,254
Others EHAh 91,223 104,720
821,662 630,631

Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease

payments, are located in the PRC.

AEBZBRENIERBDEE (BEYE
B Mt A R IBA HE R IE) B R P
BIRA -

Vi
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-A=1+—HIFFEF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are

WARDEER (&)

EHEXERFZEHR

KAENBERFE/AEEHEE ARSI
0% BEMZERZBALT

as follows:

2016 2015

—E—XREF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET
Customer A' =P 239,360 N/AT i F
Customer B’ z2H /0 141,524 87,671
Customer C2 BPR2 90,822 N/A3AS i3 3
Customer D' 2RI N/AT & F3 72,296

! Revenue from manufacture and sale of FPC.

B Revenue from manufacture and sale of FPC and flexible packaging
substrates.

: The corresponding amount is less than 10% of the total sales.

! KEZEMHEREBRIR KA -

? RERERHEREERRRI M HEERZ
WA o

’ HERBRERRIEERZ210% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMWA
2016 2015
=B-AF —ZT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT AT
Release of government grant BN IR L EER R

for construction of factory i 3 B2 BT 2 B

on existing land (note 20) (Hti320) 781 829
Release of government grant for BRI R 2 U REL

research and development projects (Hiiz20)

(note 20) 5,608 18,651
Government subsidies (note) BT E B (K1:E) 2,657 15,806
Interest income FEWA 88 65
Rental income el A 172 21
Scrap income 23N 1,166 536
Net exchange gain P 5 Uk 52 )5 58 4,362 -
Others HAh 203 413

15,037 36,321
Note: The amounts represent subsidies from various government authorities HiF: FEABE-_T—AFR-_FT—AF+=A
in supporting the high technology research and development =+ HLEFEFRBREBHIZFSHHEE
activities for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. B YA o
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAERAX
2016 2015
—E-RE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET

Interests on bank borrowings RITEER A 5,198 3,598
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

HK$1,546,000 (2015: HK$3,346,000).

|

— T 3,346,000/ 7T ) °

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. FR¥iAIE A
2016 2015
ZB-RF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before taxation has been BRERDE M E MR (FFA)
arrived at after charging (crediting): ANIER -
Research and development expenses MEER
Staff costs BIRAR 17,540 19,176
Other research and development HmAEER
expenses 74,582 51,148
92,122 70,324
Directors’ and chief executive’s EERFTEBETHAEM:
remuneration (note 10) (Brat10) 1,014 945
Other staff costs Hfh B TR 96,203 103,525
Subcontracted worker costs D8 T AR 71,345 56,285
Other staff’s retirement benefits costs  H b & T 7 iR R 4& A p A 8,825 11,170
Total staff costs BT RAMEHE 177,387 171,925
Less: Other staff costs included WRTA LN RIAEER 2
in research and development Hh B TRA
expenses shown above (17,540) (19,176)
159,847 152,749
Allowance (reversal of allowance) REEE (BHEEE)
for doubtful debts 1,096 (71)
Amortisation of prepaid TE 7 & SR IE # 8
lease payments 1,236 1,311
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R B & 760 1,004
Cost of inventories recognised as ERRABAZ ZFEMR
an expense (note) (Hiit) 646,373 551,392
Depreciation of property, ME - BMERZBEINE
plant and equipment 46,224 38,141
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE- WERE#EEE
plant and equipment 4,498 505
Minimum lease payments THREFEEHEEET 2
under operating leases HREE
in respect of land and buildings 640 362
Net foreign exchange gain SN U 25 0F 5B (4,362) (1,225)
Rental income from properties REWMEZHS KA (172) (21)
Note: The amount includes allowance for obsolete inventories of Kiet: SHEBEREFEEE,546,0008 T (2%

ek N T
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- M S

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. The income of
the PRC subsidiaries neither arises in, nor is derived from,
Hong Kong.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on
the estimated taxable income for each PRC subsidiary and
at its applicable tax rate. Under the Law of the People's
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. (“AKM Panyu”)
and AKM Electronics Technology (Suzhou) Ltd. (“AKM
Suzhou”) were awarded the Foreign Invested Advanced-
Technology Enterprise Certificate in prior years. AKM
Panyu and AKM Suzhou are entitled to tax rate reduction
from 25% to 15% for three years commenced from 1
January 2015 and 1 January 2016 respectively.

9. TAXATION 9. HIE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current tax: BIEARR IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEMET 314 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMER 15,332 3,300
15,646 3,300

Under(over)provision in prior years: NEFEEETZ
(EBRERHE) -

Hong Kong Profits Tax HEMNET 63 53
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMER (2,761) (3,979)
(2,698) (3,926)
12,948 (626)

Deferred tax: ELETIA
Current year (note 22) KFEE (K:322) 4,619 992
17,567 366

EBFERYBEMEEE 2 Gt EEH
AR E16 5% E-RHM B AR Z
WAL FEBBEERNIIEREES -

FRMEMSHEDIRSFEREAR 2E
AREREGTERRBAELEHE R
BEARLIMBECERGTEE ([
BHE]) RIBZEREBUEEREGRA - F
WEBARzMEE-_TEENF—A—HBR
B25% °

RBTFEE TR (FER)EFTEEER
NAI([EBLEMN]) RLENEFRF
(M) BRAF ([BRMZEN])EES
FRMCERB - BELEFNREHMNZRE
ARl E—hAF—HA—HEZZE—RX
F-A—HR=F=ZAHEAH25% THAZ
15% 2 BB B ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

9. TAXATION (Cont’d) 9. FIE (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FRZBARNREE BT
RZEBADR A FHE LT

H 2w e

2016 2015
—E—AEF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before taxation B 35 B 45,257 44
Tax at the applicable income tax rate  ZEATEHRM KA E 218
(note a) (Hiita) 6,789 7
Tax effect of income that are not PO B TE FE AR B 5 A B N Al
taxable in determining taxable profit = &R# 2 WA 2 i 7 £ (3) (133)
Tax effect of expenses that PO B TE FE AR B 5 A B N Al
are not deductible M HZ BB E
in determining taxable profit 2,798 1,337
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAMBAEGREZE 2
differences not recognised M e (499) (149)
Tax effect on further deduction of ﬁﬂ?ﬁ—?@zﬁiﬁ kit v
research and development M (With)
expenses (note b) (5,957) (1,812)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARERHEBHE G T E 12,684 4,178
Overprovision in prior years LAEFE 2 BEEE (2,698) (3,926)
Effect of different tax rates of M A R EAth RARE R 48 &
subsidiaries operating in other PG s
jurisdictions 125 209
Utilisation of tax losses previously BN 2 BIARFER 2 BT B 18
not recognised (291) (337)
Deferred taxation arising AR o B i F) 4 U FE AL
from withholding tax FrEE 2 BERIIE
on undistributed profits 4,619 992
Taxation for the year REFEHIA 17,567 366
Notes: it -
a.  AKM Panyu is the Group's major operating subsidiary. Therefore, the a. HBLREMNARAEEZFEZENBAA-

Group's applicable income tax rate is 15% (2015: 15%).
F115%)

RIEE BB EDI R -

b. Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, PRC subsidiaries b.
can claim PRC income tax credits on additional 50% of the qualified
research and development expenses in the PRC. Such PRC income tax
credits are allowed, and are accounted for, as deduction from current
income tax expenses when relevant conditions are fulfilled and tax
approval is obtained from the tax bureau.

PR BB S HR

|

b AEEZERMEHRREER/IS% (ZF—H

hEIKTE AR A B
Blz A BRI RBEIN0% T EASHIE
%o EKA BGI RIEHR B2 BB X% -

BRETRABHREREEEYC ARSIMEAH

ek N T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HIFFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. ESERTETHAEBZHMERAR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID Re AL
INDIVIDUALS
(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive's (i) EERTETHAEZHESHBRS
remuneration are as follows: mr:
2016 —E—-XKE

Other emoluments

HitM ¢
Retirement  Performance
Salaries benefit related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits contributions payments  emoluments
E23c 4 BB  ERBEHH
ok HeE# STEIMR A% Mens
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT TER TER
(note g)
(Wiitg)
Executive Directors: HTES:
Xiong Zheng Feng BRIFE - - - - -
Chai Zhi giang ot - 634 73 92 799
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Li Ying Hong R4 - - - - -
Gao Xiaoguang aEX - - - - -
Jia Junan EER - - - - -
Independent non-executive BV IFRNTES:
Directors:
Hung Chi Yuen Andrew REER 60 - - - 60
Zhao Xiao jth 96 - - - 96
Bi Keyun (note e) 7R (Hite) 1 - - - 1
Cui Zheng (note f) B (hr2f) 48 - - - 48

Total A%t 215 634 73 92 1,014




AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEZERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EBERETETHAEZHMERASR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEaHmAL (&)

INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive's (i) EERTETHAEZHMESHBERY
remuneration are as follows: (Cont’d) mE: (&)
2015 —ET—hF

Other emoluments

Hih &
Retirement Performance
Salaries benefit related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits  contributions payments emoluments
Ha2k BRI HRREHY
e HitgFl HE S %% MewsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FTAET FET TEL
(note g)
(Biitg)
Executive Directors: WITES:
Xiong Zheng Feng BEF i - - - - -
Chai Zhi Qiang sE% - 528 66 87 681
Non-executive Directors: EHITES:
Li Ying Hong FHa - - - - -
Gao Xiaoguang (note a) BEX (Hita) - - - - -
Jia Junan (note d) BER (Mfitd) - - - - -
Gong Jian Tang (note b) BRE(Hib) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BV IERNTES:
Directors:
Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEER 60 - - - 60
Zhao Xiao (note ¢) e (fiic) 84 - - - 84
Bi Ke yun E5n 120 - - - 120
Total A%t 264 528 66 87 945
Notes: k=3
(a)  Appointed on 12 March 2015. (@) R-ZE—hRF=-A+-_BHEZ{E-
(b)  Resigned on 17 November 2015. (b) M=ZT—HF+—A+LRHEE-
() Appointed on 16 February 2015. (0 RZE—AF-A+ BEZE-
(d)  Appointed on 17 November 2015. (d) RZTE-—RAF+—-—A+tHEZE-
(e)  Retired on 4 February 2016. (e) ANZE—RFE_AMNBRE-
(f)  Appointed on 3 May 2016. f RZE-R"FREA=BEZE-
(9)  The performance related incentive payments are determined (9) HBRBEHzHZE DR AEELEEEREA
with reference to the Group’s operating results and individual KIEMETE -
performances.

N\
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

()

(ii)

Details of directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration are as follows: (Cont’d)

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Employees’ remuneration:

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, one (2015: one) was director of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 10(i) above. The emoluments
of remaining four (2015: four) individuals were as
follows:

BE-F—AFF-A=+—HALFE

10. EERTETHAEZHME R AR

ReHFMAL (&)

()

(ii)

EERTETHRAEZHEEERT
mE: (&)

REREENMBARAITRAS  H
M (0 LX) BREATTIRE
BEMREHERBEKRZME -

EXIRATEF e ERZRAKS
ERARBRANEEEHAAEM 2R
B AR -

EXRERITEENBILIFNTE
FZHEFRRFFER/ARAES
PRtz IRF5E R -

EBEMS:

rEBREGESFMALH —& (=
T—RHF:—R)RARAEE HF
B Bt Z B RE10() 2 I B o 54
THE(ZZE—RF :WE)ALZH
BHE 5 20T

2016 2015

—EB-RF —E-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Salaries and other benefits e RHEMEF 3,703 3,292

Performance related incentive ERIIVEY 2 RS

payments 240 693
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE R ET S R AR

contributions costs 171 167

4,114 4,152
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-A=1+—HIFFEF

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EBERETETHAEZHMERASR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEaHmAL (&)

INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(ii) Employees’ remuneration: (Cont’d) (i) EEME: (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHEeN FTUATEHE:
2016 2015
—E—AREF —E—RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,008 L&
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, HE_Z—RERZFE—HFE+=H
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the —+—HIEFE AEBEUVERES
directors and the Chief Executive or the five highest RITBBHEIAERRHMA T
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon EREE - AYE RSB A SN AR
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of SER RS IBBME-

office.
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e mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BE-F—AFF-A=+—HALFE

11.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BRER

RRFHEBAANEIEBGRERBNZFET
RAB AT 8UE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to RAEsTEEREF 2
owners of the Company RATHER AFEG
for the purpose of ENCS Rkl
basic earnings 27,944 185
Number of shares
PR &
2016 2015
—EB-RF —_T-RF
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares i 2
Weighted average number of RIESTEBRELRRBT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of L@ hnkE T
basic earnings per share 1,026,727,217 1,026,727,217

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year and the comparative period were adjusted

to affect the effect of bonus element of the rights issue

which was completed on 13 March 2017.

There were no potential ordinary share in existence for

the two years ended 31 December 2016. Accordingly, no

diluted earnings per share has been presented.

REERFHHE BT EBBRINEF SR
R-E-—tEF=ZA+=ATEMHHERZA
BREZEFELFE-

HREBE-Z-R"F+_A=1t—HILM®
BEFEYELEEEE LB At
E2REREERN -

Vi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-A=1+—HIFFEF

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ 12. % -BERRKEB WX BER
> -
DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND RiBZRE
EQUIPMENT
Plant and Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
L E3 BERKSE HENELHE BLERE EH HEIR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TET TAR TAT TAR ThR ThR
COsT BA
At 1 January 2015 —Z-1f—-f-H 92,184 307,935 24,848 19,287 3,341 145,404 592,999
Additions nE 3,089 32,144 2,478 996 538 83,340 122,585
Disposals HeE - (21,308) - (129) (144) - (21,581)
Transfer EE 74,943 89,849 25,338 8,086 - (198,216) -
Currency realignment ERAE (6,088) (20,461) (3,863) (2,581) (402) (2,358) (35,753)
At 31 December 2015 —Z-1f+-A=1t-H 164,128 388,159 43,801 25,659 3,333 28,170 658,250
Additions RE - 28,607 9,590 2,647 58 54,383 95,285
Disposals HeE - (23,685) - (291) (333) - (24,309)
Transfer a - 7,060 794 533 - (8,387) -
Currency realignment gEE (10,404) (24,951) (3,534) (1,756) (142) (3,771) (44,558)
At 31 December 2016 —E-RFET-A=1t-H 153,724 375,190 55,651 26,792 2,916 70,395 684,668
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2015 “Z-HfE-f-H 11,059 148,664 17,536 14,598 1,927 - 193,784
Provided for the year FEEME 10,367 22,516 4,544 156 558 - 38,141
Eliminated on disposals HEREKE - (15,858) - (118) (137) - (16,113)
Currency realignment ERAE (849) (14,521) (1,932) (1,958) (374) - (19,634)
At 31 December 2015 ZE-REFZAZT-H 20,577 140,801 20,148 12,678 1,974 - 196,178
Provided for the year FEAR 4,956 31,315 7,540 1,927 486 - 46,224
Eliminated on disposals HERESE - (18,188) - (273) (300) - (18,761)
Currency realignment EHAE (1,517) (9,224) (1,604) (875) (92) - (13,312)
At 31 December 2016 —E-RE+-A=1t-H 24,016 144,704 26,084 13,457 2,068 - 210,329
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 N e = 129,708 230,486 29,567 13,335 848 70,395 474,339
At 31 December 2015 —Z-1f+-A=1t-H 143,551 247,358 28,653 12,981 1,359 28,170 462,072
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HIFFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ 1N2.VE - BERRE VE-BER

DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of the estimated residual values at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease of relevant land, or
40 - 50 years

Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years

Leasehold Over the remaining term of the
improvements lease or 4 years, whichever is
shorter
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 — 5 years

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged buildings
and plant and machinery with carrying amounts of
HK$51,171,000 (2015: HK$56,176,000) and HK$nil (2015:
HK$24,139,000), respectively to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

The buildings are located on leasehold land in the PRC.

Deposits for property, plant and equipment represents

deposits paid to suppliers and subcontractors for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and

construction in progress.

Rz mE (&)

Lt - BB KR EEEB E2RMGFF
HREEREAEREIRUTFRFTE:

BF AR 2 e
40E50F (MA@ E
RUE)

R 55 Ko i 2% 5% 154

MEWMHERE R THBS4FE
(A5 E %)

N 54
B 8 AT 55

RZZE—RFE+-_A=+—H K&EE
EAIREREE 2 B A %51,171,000% 7T (=
T —H4:56,176,00087T) R EB T (=
T — R4 24,139,000 70 ) Z BT A KK
ER#E ERNEBMER —RRITE
B2ER.

b

Z2EBTFTHUUNPREBEEZ £ E-

p=I1]

ME BEREBZREERBEYE B
FERREBREZTIRZEN THER DA
BEZEE-
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e M maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ—ZF

13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

—NFFZH=+—HIFE

13. ASHEEME

14.

2016 2015
—EB-RF —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group's prepaid lease payments ~ AEE ZENHERBEIE:
comprise:
Leasehold land in PRC R ZEE M 48,329 52,862
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEWMAEZHM:
Current assets mENE E 1,182 1,262
Non-current assets EMEBEE 47,147 51,600
48,329 52,862

The prepayment for land use rights is under leasehold and
is amortised over 50 years on a straight-line basis.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged land
use rights in PRC with carrying amount of HK$16,818,000
(2015: HK$18,401,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

T FERAE BN RARELIRERED
SOF # 8 o

RZE—RF+ZA=+—H F£&5H
DK BRI (16,818,000 T (—E— A
% :18,401,000/8 7T ) 2 1 B + 4 s A 4
EAAEBMER —RBITEEZER-

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 14 At BEEZRE
2016 2015
—B—XE — R4
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl FHET
Unlisted equity investment EETIRERE 16,769 17,904

The amount represented the Group's 7.11% unlisted
equity interests in a company incorporated in the PRC.
The investee is engaged in research and development of
semi-conductor packaging substrates. The unlisted equity
investment is measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot

be measured reliably.

|

&SRR R B MR SZH) A AR 3E £
BRAEZENT 1% HIREL R EFSE
BH R ERMANTIE - AN IF LT AE
RENAFEAEBERERA KAAF
EERREIUFHAERTE HERF
FE LTI BER BN AR E BRI AR
WEZ A E -

ek N T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

15. INVENTORIES 15. B &
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Raw materials R# 24,750 20,964
Work in progress X 36,628 25,346
Finished goods 2 AX, & 18,393 17,462
79,771 63,772
16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. E5 R H MR WA
Trade and other receivables include the following balances B o REMBERFIBERIETIE S EURK
of trade and bills receivables: BREWERE
2016 2015
—E—REF e S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Trade and bills receivables H 5 W GRIE M R N E R 297,354 168,431
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERFE (41) (6,666)
297,313 161,765
Other tax recoverable H AT ElF 1 6,854 14,259
Other receivables and prepayments B JE W 3R IE R TR AR
(note) (Bet) 13,954 16,416
318,121 192,440
Note: The amount mainly represents the prepayments which in the opinion Wit ZRBEEREEFAR/BHNRRRT=_MEAR
of the directors, the amount is expected to be utilised within the next R ZEMNR-
12 months.
The Group allows a credit period normally ranging from NEFATFESEEIEEH B 5300
30 to 90 days to its trade customers. At the discretion of ZO0H E o KEEWIG A EE{HET
the directors, after assessing credit quality of particular TEEEEER ETIBEERFA£E
customers, several major customers were allowed to settle EHE A S ESAEE RS AE1208 -

their balances beyond the credit terms up to 120 days.

- M S
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 16. B REMEWRIE (£)

Before accepting any new customer, the management
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Approximately 90% (2015: 73%)
of the Group’s trade receivables are neither past due nor
impaired.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables presented based on the invoice dates (other
than bills receivables which are presented based on the
issuance date of relevant bills) at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates:

FEMNFTREFZI ERESHHERER
PRZREEEREEREFPZEELR K
E@mA90% (T —HF :73% ) I EBH
SR EZE 5 EWGRIE -

UTARBERRREZAH (EZEH
WA MR BRI 252 8 5 R WKIA
K EWRE 2 RO (BKREEERS
HIZHBRE2EHARZS)

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within 30 days 30BA 160,575 75,023
31-60 days 31%60H 87,311 35,736
61-90 days 61%290H 24,621 17,759
91-120 days 91%Z120H 17,184 19,878
121 days—1 year 121BE1F 7,622 12,566
Over 1 year 19U E - 803
297,313 161,765

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance is (i)
amount due from a shareholder and its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$55,992,000 (2015: HK$16,462,000) and
(ii) amount of HK$8,677,000 (2015: HK$nil) is pledged to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$28,646,000 (2015: HK$36,748,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss in view of the satisfactory
subsequent settlement. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 126 days (2015: 136 days).

|

(WEWR—ZBREAREWNE QA ® K
JH55,992,0008 . (=T — & F
16,462,000 T) Bt ARNEE 2 B 5 JE
WK TIE 4 84 (i) E # #8,677,0007% 7T
(ZE—RF:T8n) ERAEEME
RERRITEEZER

AEBECZESRBFELESRBRIEER
M {E 528,646,000 L (ZE — A F:
36,748,000/ 7T ) < FEYBR 3 - B RAFIER
MEBBHEBH BREEEBRERER
BREEREE  NEBIWEEDBERIE
BE - AEEVERZSERITEEMAIE
AR EEKKREZ FHIRER 1268
(ZE—HRF:136H) -

ek N T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HIFFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 16.

Ageing of trade and bills receivables presented

BEZREMEBYWRE (&)

RERFAM2ICBHERREZESE

based on the invoice date which are past due but not KRHEREKEEZREKR
impaired
2016 2015
—E-REF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
0-30 days 0%230H 123 3,467
31-60 days 31260H 5,911 3,937
61-90 days 61%290H 2,762 1,130
91-120 days 91%120H 12,228 15,851
121 days-1 year 18 &21F 7,622 12,348
Over 1 year T - 15
28,646 36,748
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIEBEZ2E2H
2016 2015
. —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year F S 6,666 7,707
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment Ft & WA B R 2 BB
loss) recognised on receivables CREEEER) 1,096 (71)
Amount written off as uncollectible Jil 8571 AT UK Bl 2 FRIE (7,578) (687)
Currency realignment B (143) (283)
Balance at end of the year FRER 41 6,666

Included in the Group’s allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$41,000 (2015: HK$6,666,000) by reference
to subsequent settlement and, where applicable, credit
quality of individual customers. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

L7

AEB2RERBE BELRBER
241,000 7L (=& — A % : 6,666,00078
7T) Z BRI BREE S EWKIE - H2ZE
AlEFPcrBEEREEER (WER)E
FoRNEBUEmRZELERIT AT MK

=)
[aTu g

L
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-A=1+—HIFFEF

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 16. ES R HMEWRE (&)
The Group's trade and other receivables that are AR B ER I e G AN 2 B TIE
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies ZAEBEZE G R EMBEUWGKESRTIMOT

of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2016 2015
ZE-KRF —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
United States dollar (“US$") EVACE D 76,150 79,206
South Korean Won (“KRW") EEE ([REE]) 263 82
17. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 17. EEARITER
The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to ZHBERERTRIT AR AIEERE
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group FTAEBZ2RBRITEE BoEAR
and are therefore classified as current assets. B)EE -
The pledged bank deposits of the Group carried at interest REEREZ BEFRITFEFIRFEFZE0.02%
rate of 0.02% per annum (2015: 0.02% per annum). The ZE-RFFNE02% )T E-BHK
pledged bank deposits will be released upon settlement of HETHERBERBEBERITEEEEERR
the relevant bank borrowings. The pledged bank deposits B B EMABITERIIAETTEHE
are denominated in HK$.
18. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 18. RITHEBRRRE
Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits with RITHEBRBIEAN F0.01%E1.15% 2 F
original maturity less than three months which carry FE(ZZF—AHF:001%E1.15% )7t B
interest at rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.15% (2015: BREBHBLR=EA 2 EERITERK
0.01% to 1.15%) per annum.
Included in the Group's bank balances are short-term AEERTERBEERERE ZRITZ
deposits of HK$21,698,000 (2015: HK$26,442,000) kept 5 HA1F 5021,698,0008 L (— & — A & ¢

in banks located in the PRC. 26,442,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HIFFE

18. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Cont’d) 18. RITEBRRRAE (&)
In addition, included in the bank balances and cash are the N RITEHREBREBETINERE
following amounts denominated in currencies other than EERB NGB AN ERETIE 2K
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are 18 -

set out below:

2016 2015

—EB-RF —E-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FH& T

uss$ ETT 4,350 6,906

KRW FEE 264 370

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. E5 R EMEN IR

Trade and other payables include the following balances: B REAMENFIBEE NI 4R

2016 2015

—E-RE e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT T

Trade and bills payables B S ENFIERENZER 249,365 139,834

Payables for acquisition of property, WEME BERZE2

plant and equipment & 3R 22,431 6,278

Accrued staff costs JEEH B TR A 30,897 13,020

Construction payables FET TR FRI8 8,893 12,809

Other taxation payables JE A E Ath 5 18 915 674

Other payables and accruals o JE AT SR & fEET B A 9,306 4,240

321,807 176,855

Vi
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-A=1+—HIFFEF

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 9. B NHMEARIE (&)

ATRRBERRZERAE RELHA
B2 EZRNFTARENRE 2K

The following is an aged analysis by invoice date/bills
issued date of trade and bills payables at the end of the

reporting period: oA
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TFHET
Within 30 days 30B A 87,320 50,635
31-60 days 31£260H 63,935 38,106
61-90 days 61£290H 48,831 26,457
91-120 days 91£2120H 27,648 11,463
121 days—1 year 218 &21F 19,679 12,601
Over 1 year T 1,952 572
249,365 139,834

The Group's trade and other payables that are
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies

of the relevant group entities are set out below:

NHEBREEERYEE

BN 2 B FIE

ZAKEB S R EMBENFAKIIMT

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT T T

Euro (“EUR") BT ([BT]) 1,441 1,347
Us$ ETT 38,684 28,288
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-F—AFF-A=+—HALFE

20. DEFERRED INCOME 20. IEIEWA
2016 2015
—E-XRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Government grants received BTINEIBEMMKER 2
in respect of: BT 2 B
Development of new products MEEED (Mita)
(note a) 1,647 24
Construction of factory RIBAE T EEHE
on existing lands (note b) (K1iEb) 25,793 28,337
27,440 28,361
Less: Amounts to be recognised B RER IR AN R
in profit or loss 2 FIE
in the following year (2,395) (822)
Amount shown under non-current FRBEBEETHAT
liabilities Z TR 25,045 27,539
Notes: Hiat -

The amounts represent government subsidies received in advance
in relation to research and development expenses incurred on
the development of certain new products. The amounts would
be recognised in the same period as the related research and
development expenses were incurred resulting in release of
HK$5,608,000 (2015: HK$18,651,000) to profit or loss.

The amount of Renminbi (“RMB"”) 26,750,000 was received in
respect of a development support fund for the construction of
factory on the lands owned by the Group located at Suzhou pursuant
to “Implementation Measures for Development Support Policies for
Advanced Manufacturing Industries in Suzhou Gaoxin District”. The
amount would be released over the estimated useful lives of the
constructed factory upon the commencement of operation of the
new factory. The construction of the factory was completed and was
in use since 2011. During the year, HK$781,000 (2015: HK$829,000)
was released to profit or loss. Details in relation to the grant of the
fund had been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2008.

7 R

& ANR AU R B8R TR dm T EE AR 2 BT AR
B AT RBER - IR AR X
EEZRARBRRAEMMBER HEHBL
#8%5,608,000/8 7T (= F—F 4 : 18,651,000/
L) °

ZAYANRE ([ AR¥])26,750,0005T 2 5B
BAREBIRE (8NS5 EEN R o RE 2
BRABERRZERIVE] RERGNEFNH L
th FEEHEMEB ERIFES - A ES
RFMEFREEBENEERE 2G5 AE
AFEHER -ZBMEEERT YT ——F
BHEEER - FRNE781,0008 L (=T —A
F:829,000/57) EEEH - FEMERESH
HEERARATBSMA-ZENEAA-+T
BRAHHESE-




AKM Industrial Company Limited ZERBEEERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE— NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. RITEE
2016 2015
ZE-AF —E-LfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Bank loans RITER 134,391 111,751
Export invoice discounting loans HOBERNEER - 13,129
Trust receipts loans ET I E R - 1,386
134,391 126,266
Secured PSR 80,730 104,818
Carrying amount repayable: FEEZERMEE
Within one year —F R 107,651 119,410
More than one year, ZHR—FETBBARE
but not exceeding two years 10,543 4,068
More than two years, ZAMEE BB LF
but not exceeding five years 16,197 2,788
134,391 126,266
Analysis of carrying amount: REES T :
Amounts due within one year shown BB EE NFIRZ
under current liabilities —FARNHZ A 107,651 119,410
Carrying amount of bank loans FR|ERKRET —FA
that are not repayable within one BEEHBEERENK
year from the end of the reporting BRERITEHREE
period but contain a repayable on (RRBEBEETETR)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 26,740 -
Amounts shown under non-current FRBEBEBETARZEHE
liabilities - 6,856
134,391 126,266
Bank loans amounting of HK$80,730,000 (2015: R1TE 3£ % A£80,730,0008 T (=&
HK$104,818,000) are secured by charges over land use — A4 104,818,000 7T) N ANEE 7
rights, buildings, machinery, trade receivables and bank TR BT R EHERFIER
deposits of the Group while the trust receipts loans in RITTERIERR mBEFEETKEER
prior year was secured by charges over the Group's bank FAREE 2 RITHERIEER (M13E26) o

deposits (note 26).

|

ek N T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

= B 5 R AR MY A

21. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2016, included in the bank borrowings of
the Group are bank loans amounting of HK$132,053,000
(2015: HK$111,751,000) which bear interest at fixed rates.
The export invoice discounting loans and trust receipts
loans carry interest at prevailing market rates.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as
follows:

EE—NFEf = —HIEE

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
V=RV

RITHE (&)

RZE—RFE+-_A=+—8 A&£ER
TEEF ARITEFN 245 5132,053,000
BT (ZZE—HF:111,751,0008 7T) T3
REEMEF B - HOBZNWRERRE
AWBEERDNRBITMSFERGE -

AEEEBEEZERME (TRESERFTON

) EEMT -

2016
—E—-XF

2015
—E—RF

Effective interest rates: B FIx
Fixed-rate borrowings EEREE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

3.01% to 4.57%
3.01%%£4.57%
3.12%

2.48% to 4.83%
2.48%%4.83%
3.12% to 3.50%
3.12%%3.50%

UHEREEEREERUINZEEIIE
ZAEBERITEERINMAT :

2016 2015
—E-RE e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FHET

Us$ ETT 40,234 103,600
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE([HE]) 2,338 772

As at 31 December 2016, a subsidiary of the Group
breached certain financial covenants as stipulated in the
borrowing agreements entered into by the subsidiary
with carrying amount in aggregate of RMB28,000,000
(equivalent to HK$31,302,000). The respective borrowings
have been classified as current liabilities. Subsequent to 31
December 2016, the Group has fully repaid the respective
borrowings.

L7

W_ZE—XNE+_A=+—8 K&EH—
FHRB ARG YMEERENSE THHE
RAEFKEL SPREEEAEARYE
28,000,0007T (#H%7431,302,0007% 7L ) °
EHBEEEPEARBDAGB - R
—RNFE+ZAZt+—RH%B AEEEERHY
BESHEBEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22. EEFIE

The following deferred tax liability mainly arises from
withholding tax on the undistributed profits of the PRC

UTREEATEKNERRZARDEER
AEEARMEEc EERBEE LR

subsidiaries and movement thereon during current and RAFERBEFE 2EBHEZEH :
prior year:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RHF—F—H 2,021
Charged to profit or loss (note 9) 8RR (#:79) 992
Currency realignment BB (123)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RF+-_A=+—H 2,890
Charged to profit or loss (note 9) BE =R (#779) 4,619
Currency realignment B (382)

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+A=+—H 7,127

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
the deductible temporary differences in respect
of accumulated allowance for doubtful debts and
accumulated allowance for obsolete inventories of
approximately HK$41,000 (2015: HK$4,426,000) and
HK$8,072,000 (2015: HK$7,040,000) respectively. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$105,781,000
(2015: HK$29,229,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams. The tax losses in Hong Kong may be carried
forward indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses arising

from subsidiaries operated in the PRC of approximately
HK$104,768,000 (2015: HK$27,961,000) will expire from
2017 to 2021.

|

RBERR AEEHEBHERER Y &5
BEKREFTEZRFRERBA 2T
FERE Z RS B 441,0008 L (ZE— 1
£ : 4,426,000/ 7T ) 18,072,000/ 7T ( =
T — R 4F 7,040,000/ 7T) o B A B
ER B R KRB A ARG R =8 B
I 48 5 5% 5 AT F00R B B = BERE R B TR 08

RIEBR  NEBES AT H R RER
s M 2 K B) A A% 18 & #8 49105,781,000
BT (ZZ— R 129,229,000 L) - i
B SR 2R FE SR B v I 2ROR TS B] TEOR) - A ik 3
ERERELEHRBEE REBRIEEE
ERPGE-NPREEZHBER TF&
KAER T AR IE 49104,768,0008 7T (—
— A% :27,961,00087T) Hﬂé_ffti
E-T-—FHH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

I E—NFEf = —HIEE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. R
Number of Share
shares capital
BREER B
HK$'000
FE T
Issued and fully paid: EBEITRER:
At 1 January 2015, WZZE—RAF—HA—H
31 December 2015 and 2016 ZE-RAFRZF—RF
+=—A=+—H 987,470,000 333,161

On 13 March 2017, the Company issued 246,867,500
ordinary shares, on the basis of one rights share for every
four existing ordinary shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.55 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$133.6 million were raised by the Company. The
Company’s issued number of ordinary share increased to
1,234,337,500 shares. The new shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares in issue.

RZE—tF=A+=H ARE#T
246,867,500 LM - BB UARIR A
L@ A AR B B R%0.55 8 LR IE — iR
MR o EEETHRR - AN RFEEFR
15 FRTEFEE49133,600,000/8 7 c AR A Z
BT MRS B INE1,234,337,5000%
B BBITHROMES TEED T2
RERD ZHRZEMA -

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24. €T B
Categories of financial instruments SRITEER
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables BEREERZE (BERS
(including cash and cash equivalents) &IR&ZHEEAER ) 338,830 208,466
Available-for-sale investment AHHEZRE 16,769 17,904
Financial liabilities EHmas
Amortised cost B R 420,721 286,862

L7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24, ST A (&)

Financial risk management objectives

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s
daily operations. The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investment, trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with the financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

BEEBEERR

ERTAHUAKEEZARLEEGRER -
AEBZIZECRMIABEAIHERE
85 MHEMESKIE - BEMRITFR R
THHBERERE 85 REAM RN FERIR
THEE - ZEeRMTAZFHBRARBME
BE-TXHINEZEZeRTEAEHEZRA
SR MFAREZERR BR - BEEEE
BREEZERR AR EEE B R
BUEE 2 ¥k

Market risk 5 E kg
Foreign currency risk management SN R B B R

Certain trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, bank overdraft and bank
balances and cash of the Group are denominated in
US$ and HK$, other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against currency risk. However, the
management monitors foreign currency risk exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

AEBzETES MEMEWRE &

REMERN IR RITEE  RITEINK
RITEHRMERESTIUET LB T (FRR
EREEER 2 REER)FHE EA%E
A INE R AEE W ARNBERE R
TAYHRERRER - AT BIEEEEINE
R YEERERZEELHEANINER

LA

g o
2

R@EAH AEBIUSNINEFEZEEE

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at ErEYaE s REANT
the reporting date are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF —E-XRF e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FExT T T
us$ ETT 78,917 131,888 80,500 86,113
HK$ BT 331 10,884 379 11

., YA
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24. SR T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk management (Cont’d)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against US$ and HK$. 5%
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis represents the trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, bank borrowings,
bank overdraft and bank balances and cash where the
denomination are in US$ and HK$, the major foreign
currency risks. A positive number indicates an increase in
post-tax profit for the year where RMB strengthens against
US$ and HK$. For a 5% weakening of RMB against US$
and HK$, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the post-tax profit for the year, and the balances below
would be negative.

BEEBERERR (&)

TEmE (&)

S m R B ()

NS BURR R

TRFALAEEHARBHYEZTRET
FHEMEZES% 2 BEE 5% RREEE
HOMNEER 2 AT RE B IR B B) 2 7714 - B
EOIERERRBEZAINEHEZE
BIEE YN FRBERHINEERZ5%
HEMEL AR - MIAETRBTT (X2
Rk iHE SEEIMRKRE S KEAME
Wik - B 5 R EAM RN TR RITEE
RITBEXARBITEBRER S - HARE
HETNABTLREY EHBRTFERBK
BEMEBM-HRAREHEZTRETTE
5% BHFARBEENE —EHE
HREE MM EsEe a8

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

Increase in post-tax profit for the year: ZN4F & [ i 18 34 FIJ 38 A0 -
uss ETT 67 1,945
HK$ BT 2 462
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24, SRT R (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk management

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank balances and cash. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise. The management considers the cash flow
interest rate risk is insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to the fixed-rate bank borrowings and bank
overdraft. However, the management considers the fair
value interest rate risk on the fixed-rate bank borrowings
is insignificant as the bank borrowings are relatively short-
term. The management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

BEEBERERR (&)

TEmE (&)

FI K fz & 1

AEEZRSRENTRREZHRT SR
TR EIRE B B - AN S BRI &
MR GPERER - AT B EGEEN R
BRER INARREEZ B HEANNE
EpER- ERERIRFASRENEAR
RTEKe

AEETEHESRTEERRITESLZ
RFEMERER - AT ARRITEERY
BREY EEERRERRITBEZAF
BENERBRMTRE - EEBEEMNER
B Y HEAREREELPERNEE

LA
STy
2
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24, SRT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentrations of credit risk on trade
receivables as 43% (2015: 17%) and 79% (2015: 50%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers (including
the largest customer) respectively within the "FPC
business” operating segment in the PRC. The management
considers, based on the strong financial background and
good credibility of those debtors, there are no significant
credit risk.

The credit risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash is limited because the majority
of the counterparties are state-owned banks with good
reputation in the PRC.

BEEBERERR (&)

FEmEE

MRXHHUFR_F-—R"ER_FT—RF
T-A=+t—BREETRFZEME I
AEERSECHIATHEEMARTZ
RAEERRBEEMBEIRRERAMIE
EZREE /EREEERR EEECER
K—HABREBRHITEERSE FEFH
R B A ERVE AR 7 - DATE (R SR EUER #E 15 it
B8 AR 2 EH - b N EE
1 18 5l & 5 F& Wk IR 2 AT YR [B] & 58 - LA B
R AR B S BEAEL ZREBEE -
Woptibin s ERERR/AEEZEER
B B K g B A o

AEEHESRERRREZ EERRKRER
EAEFEWHIBBE 243% (ZF—Hh
Fi17%)R%79% (Z T —FHF:50%) -
DR ABERAEBMATE R EEERE
B EEBEIBAZEREFPRAREF (B
BEARF)ZHE - ERNZEEHAZR
RUBEERRRIFER ERERANTE
EXEERR-

HRRSHUFEIERTEBERGZESR
RI7T At AR S ERITF KA KIRTT
wHphkBReZ2FERRBBR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24, ST A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the risk that the Group will have
insufficient resources to meet its financial liabilities as they
fall due. The Group's strategy to manage liquidity risk is to
ensure that the Group has sufficient funds to meet all its
potential liabilities as they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management also monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact
that its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$37,389,000 (2015: HK$6,387,000) as at 31 December
2016.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that,
taking into account the present available banking
facilities of approximately HK$275.7 million as at 31
December 2016 and the net proceeds from rights issues
of approximately HK$133.6 million by the Company
completed on 13 March 2017, together with internal
financial resources of the Group, the Group has sufficient
working capital to meet in full its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future. Hence, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a

going concern basis.

|

BEEBERERR (&)
B EZEE

nBEERREASEKETEEREN
Eﬂ%%ﬂEEZH CAKEEERD
ExRB e RESERRAKEAEREE
TRIPRENHBEEERE:

ErnpEcRRERETE ARESER
LRgBEEERRAEZRERREEE
HEKF - RMAAEELEERTEES R
REBReRERD L E - BEEENEE
RITBEZHARERETERZLY -

ERRZTE—R"E+ZA=1T—H &%
Bz rEBEERARREEE37,389,000
B (ZZ—A%F 16,387,000 ) - KR
REREMBWMERF  ARRAEFDLERA
EBCARGBERIEFLEEZE-

KRR —ZE—R"F+-_A=+—HHA
Al A MIRITEE49275,700,0007%8 T K AR
NN ZE—+F=A+=HZKHHI

F 1S s B F 58 47133,600,000/8 7T A R AR
EBMNARHEER ARREERA KN
EEETETYERBRTNAGRNEE
B EHERNN2EmBEITMBET-
Bt eV BRRCIRBELE CEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24. SR T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont'd) BEREEERZ(£)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) mEBELERE (&)
Liquidity tables RBEE XK

TRALAEBEIFTESHBERERTE
BRPZHBTERINPER - ZRRIEAXR
SEHANRz&ZFEHZEMAGB IR
REERERE-

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.

TRERMNEEAREZHEESRE -EFNE
MERFHNERZAET  RITRFKIAT
AmERRZF KBRS

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

On demand
Weighted and Total Total
average less than 1-3 4-6 7-12 1-5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 month months months months years  cash flows amount
mE EERSR ATRRS
RREiES 188 1238 A 4Z6fR8  7E12M8R 1255 RELR RELE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET FAT ThET FAT ThER TAR ThER
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
tTZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities #f7£&BEE
Trade and other payables B REMENTE - 185,592 86,629 7,018 7,091 - 286,330 286,330
Borrowings: BE:
~ fixed-rate bank borrowings -ERBRTEE 4.01 132,053 - - - - 132,053 132,053
- variable-rate bank borrowings -FRRTEE 3.13 2,338 - - - - 2,338 2,338
319,983 86,629 7,018 7,091 - 420,721 420,721
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF
+ZA=+-H°
Non-derivative financial liabilities #{T4¢®B&E
Trade and other payables BHREMBNRIE - 103,292 36,118 11,367 9,819 - 160,596 160,596
Borrowings: EE:
— fixed-rate bank borrowings -ERRITEE 281 27,016 41,069 36,563 2,115 7,052 113,815 111,751
~ variable-rate bank borrowings - ZERTEE 3.24 8,090 6,462 - - - 14,552 14,515
138,398 83,649 47,930 11,934 7,052 288,963 286,862
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 24, ST A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Liquidity tables (Cont’d)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “Repayable on demand or within 1
month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank loans amounted to approximately
HK$134.4 million (2015: HK$11.1 million). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such bank loans as at 31 December 2016
will be repaid within three years of the reporting date in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows will amount to approximately
HK$137.9 million (2015: HK$11.4 million).

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at cost and amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values at the

end of the reporting period.

BEEBERERR (&)

mBELmE (&)

RBEEZK (&)

HAEERERERGRZRITERGT AU L
HEs R [EERS PR —ERAZEX
NRE] ZEBER-RZTE—XR"F+=A
T+ B %SERTERZAFTEALE
HAREX) /134,400,000 70 (— T —RHF:
11,100,000 7T ) &85+ R AR S B 2 B 15K
S ARNREERERITHETAIEITER
B RERENRFER - AARESHAE R
—E-ARNE+_A=Z+—RAZ%EETE
REBBEERBRMK 2BEEERDEHR
HEBHE=FREE BN A2 EFE
IR0/ AR%E 1 & 49137,900,0008 7T (=
T —F 4 :11,400,00087C) °

ERMIAZAFE

HpemEERERBBEZATFENER
REEBBEANFRBRSRESNEE

ARAREERR NEAMBHRRAKK
RIZBHERAIRZeMEERERBE
ZEMEEERBERRZ R FEERE-
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25. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

26.

The Group manages the capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remain unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings disclosed in note 21, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained earnings.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital
structure through the raising of bank borrowings and the
redemption of existing debt.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain bank deposits,
buildings, plant and machinery, land use rights and trade
receivables were pledged to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group as follows:

I E—NFEf = —HIEE

25. EXE R ER

26.

AEEZEAEEEERRAKEANZE
BOAHELE RARERELEB LK
REBREDZFBARRREAL®R KK
B EERBEREREFRIE -

AEBZEARBREMTENIHEZRT
fEE MEReELREFEREUAREAR
AlEBARGERD (BREBTERA
KRB EN)

AEEERERBEENEARBE A&H
ZEEEARAKNAREBENARE 2B -
I #5355 B IR IR TT B B M W3R B EH A
FEHEERBERRERE-

BEERHA

R|BEHR THETRITER BF ]
FR#as LinERENRE S ERFAED
TEF EAAKEERRITEEZER
LN

2016 2015

—B-RF —E-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T T

Bank deposits |ITF N 2,356 2,356
Buildings gF 51,171 56,176
Plant and machinery 55 Mo i 23 - 24,139
Prepaid lease payments TR EFIE 16,818 18,401
Trade receivables 2 5 W RIE 8,677 -
79,022 101,072
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F— N NF+-A=1+—HIFFEF

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. REHEHRIE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REERR NEBBE T REFAA
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease B LB E MmN T Y EFE R 2 KRR &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in BEERBZRBITAERT

respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T T
Within one year —F K 271 256
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ & —FEHFHE
(BRERME) 140 -
411 256
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by KERENREASERETHAZTWE
the Group for certain of the office properties and staff rETESAESNZHAS REHEFTH
quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms within one year B—FEE=fFo
to three years.
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. EAESE
2016 2015
ZE-KRF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T T
Capital expenditure in respect of BEWME BMELEREZ
acquisition of property, plant and BEARRMYE  BEIHERR
equipment which is contracted AU mERNEE
for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 50,597 19,810
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 29. RIRERIFTE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (the
“MPF"”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The retirement benefits scheme contributions charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of HK$73,000 (2015: HK$102,000)
represent contributions payable to the MPF scheme by the
Group, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees employed in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group
is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The state-managed retirement benefits scheme
contributions charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$8,825,000 (2015: HK$11,134,000). The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the

contribution payable in future years.

RNEBRAMBEABCEEAREERR R
sIEAEe ([BES]) REaEaEk
H 2 E R AT X 2 RKAE M E Sl
K A73,0008 70 (= F —FHF 102,000/
) DBEAEERXNTEBESFE 2 H
FomEESEHMRMER-

AEEFHBAREAZEE BTEHK
FEEZBERKBREEZKE A&
EEMRKENGEZNFecaTES
HEBEMNS R BEREME2EK
ma Ny E 2 g RIKEFEEHR A
8,825,000/ 7L (ZF — A 4F : 11,134,000
BIT) c AEBNBRARERFE 2H—ET
BIREZETEMEL AR T 2 3K

7R B I A 5L YA FROAT R R SR A R A
Z B
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZE—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZ

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

()

(i)

In addition to the balances set out in note 16, the
Group entered into the following transactions with

30. BELTR S

(i) FREBRMEI6ZHEHRIN RAFE
W ARET B EREES R IR

related parties during the year: 5
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Rentals for office paid MR R B AR
to fellow subsidiaries ZHRAERS 120 120
Sales of goods to a shareholder M —&ZBREREME QA
and its subsidiaries HESm 90,822 28,968

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
(“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group
is significant influenced indirectly by China North
Industries Corporation (“CNIC"), a state-owned
enterprise established in the PRC.

The Group also conducts business with other state-
controlled entities. The directors consider those state-
controlled entities to be third parties so far as the

Group's business with them are concerned.

(i) BEFEEMAREFHCEEEZ
X5/ kR

AEEEEMEZKBEREBRIHT
HBRAERAEERREARIEFZLE
(TBEIZRERIDE]) ETZhb I K
BREEINPERIBEREF
EHTTEEE (THEIE T TEREE])
BERFE-

AEETTEEMBERENEEETE
BoBERA RARERRE 2 XK
mE REAREHEERFE=T7-
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(ii) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC (Cont’d)

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks which are stated-controlled entities in
its ordinary course of business.

The directors are of the opinion that the transactions
with other state-controlled entities are not significant
to the Group's operations.

(iii) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the
year represented remuneration paid to directors as
disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

31. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 March 2017, the Company issued 246,867,500
ordinary shares, on the basis of one rights share for
every four existing ordinary shares at the issue price of
HK$0.55 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$133.60 million were raised by the Company. The
Company’s issued number of ordinary share increased to
1,234,337,500 shares. The new shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing share in issue.

L7

3N.HERRS (&)

(i) BEFEEGEREFNCEELEZ
X5,/ &tk (#E)

AN AEEERE LR XK BIES
HERBAREFREZE TRITAILE
BR5 BREHR BEREM—RIER

-

EERRBEHEMERENEEZRS
BAKEZEELFEER-

(i) TEEBEAEHE

FRATEZEEABZMEBRAMB
WRHTFIOMBENEEE 2

TEEEABZHEeAFTFHEESR
BEAXRBLRTSEEEE -

3. MEHRSE

RZE—tF=A+=B ARE#T
246,867,5000% L ik - B AR A
@R A LA T E B RR0.558 TR IE — iR
R o AR EETHR AT EEFN
153X TE FEE#9133,600,000/8 7T c AR A Z
EETLmRE R INE1,234,337,5008%
B BBITHROHES TEED T2
BERGOZBRFHA -
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

32. AR EMBARRA KL #EHE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE REE 253 450
Interests in subsidiaries B R Z s 468,852 468,852
469,105 469,302
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H bW RIE 71,635 57,696
Amount due from a subsidiary fE U — R B 8~ B 0B 13,880 16,971
Taxation receivable e U F 18 - 30
Pledged bank deposits BIERIRITE S 2,356 2,356
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBNIR® 4,506 6,252
92,377 83,305
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E b FIR 29,724 17,256
Amounts due to subsidiaries R EENGIE ] 93,986 105,067
Taxation payable JE T B 18 120 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26,643 18,452
150,473 140,775
Net current liabilities FREaE (58,096) (57,470)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABEE 411,009 411,832




Annual Report 2016 —Z—XE&#

Fn
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ-F—NNF+=-A=+—HILFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. AR BB RERN GEE ()
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

2016 2015
ZE-KRF —E-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital and reserves MR % Rt 4
Share capital [N 333,161 333,161
Retained profits IR & F 77,848 71,815
Total equity rEw 411,009 404,976
Non-current liability EREBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE - 6,856
411,009 411,832
The statement of financial position of the Company RAARzHBRARERESTEN _-F
was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of —tF A+ UBEETIEETE I
Directors on 24 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf BIIEERERESE:
by:
LI YING HONG XIONG ZHENG FENG
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
ZTHRAL B IF g

EF EF
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. AR BB RERN GEE (EF)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Movement in the Company’s retained profits KARREBER 225
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZFE—RAF—HA—H 71,567
Profit for the year and total FRRNEFAEZENREE
comprehensive income for the year 248
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZF—RF+-_A=+—H 71,815
Profit for the year and total FRBEFMNEFANZENGEE
comprehensive income for the year 6,033

At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+-A=+—8 77,848
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 33. AR EIMB AR 2715
COMPANY
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—RFRZZE—RF+A=*+—
2016 and 2015 are as follows: Az AREEWBAR ZFBHOT:
Place of
establishment Form of business Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary and operation structure Paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
HADNARARZ
WEARER RIREEHE  LEARER BEER EhRAER TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# &
AKM Panyu The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$21,700,000 100% - Manufacture and sale
enterprise of FPC, manufacture

and sale of flexable
packaging substrates

BEREN ikl NEBELE 21,700,000 T 100% - RERBEZUERR
HERHEZMHEER
New Career Guongzhou The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$2,229,000 100% - Manufacture and sale
Electronics Company Limited enterprise of flexible packaging
substrates
ENTZIESEFERAA ikl NEBERE 2,029,000% T 100% - RERBEZUHRER
AKM Suzhou The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$37,642,460 100% - Manufacture and sale of
enterprise FPC, manufacture and
sale of flexible packaging
substrates
FM LR ikl NEBELE 37,642,460 0 100% - REREEZUERR-
HERHEZMHEER
Giant Rise Technology Hong Kong Limited company HK$1,000,000 75% - Investment holding
Limited
BARBERLA &k BRAT 1,000,000% ¢ 75% - REBR
Shenzhen Giant Rise Electronics ~ The PRC Wholly owned-foreign RMB1,800,000 - 75%  Trading of raw materials
Company Limited enterprise and FPC, sourcing
and sale of electronic
components
AEATNEETF HE NEBELE AR1,800,0007 - 75% BERMHRFUBRR
BRAR RERHEEBT AN
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at B B8 A RIS M (B 4 B R BB AT R & 75
the end of both years. B o

7 R
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Financial Summary

MM E
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE
RESULTS 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
E —E-RE ZF—RF ZENHF —T—=F —FT—=—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FAET FAT
Revenue PN 821,662 630,631 622,057 641,159 600,686
Cost of sales $H 8 AR (646,373)  (551,392)  (515,433)  (552,804)  (507,521)
Gross profit E7 175,289 79,239 106,624 88,355 93,165
Other income H AU A 15,037 36,321 28,492 10,326 3,838
Distribution costs 73 88 A AR (15,897) (16,360) (17,189) (12,048) (12,270)
Administrative expenses T H (31,852) (25,234) (31,225) (25,130) (27,643)
Research and development #ff 2 & A
expenses (92,122) (70,324) (51,261) (22,589) (12,648)
Share of result of FE(E—E
a joint venture RG]
ZEE - - - - (3,301)
Finance costs B & AR AR (5,198) (3,598) (3,206) (5,406) (6,458)
Profit before taxation B 75 B A 45,257 44 32,235 33,508 34,683
Taxation Fiig (17,567) (366) (2,272) (2,041) (2,146)

Profit (loss) for the year N FE E s )
(#535) 27,690 (322) 29,963 31467 32,537

At 31 December

R+=-—HA=+-—H
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
EERAE —E-RE ZE—hF ZENHF —T—=F —FT——F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TET TExT TExT TET

Total assets BEE 981,651 831,541 807,150 655,027 563,943
Total liabilities Y =RE (497,594) (336,353)  (286,131)  (372,184)  (320,216)
484,057 495,188 521,019 282,843 243,727

Equity attributable to ZAN/NEIEZ ZS N
owners of the Company  JE{hE S 483,426 491,969 517,226 279,420 241,502
Non-controlling interests 4% % i %5 631 3,219 3,793 3,423 2,225
Total equity AR 484,057 495,188 521,019 282,843 243,727

|
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